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SENATE, No. 766
 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY
 

INTROOUCIW JANUARY 30, 1!Y78 

Referred to Commit.tCl' on St"h' Government, l,'eueral and
 

Interstate Relations and Veterans Affairs
 

AN ACT lo e~tablisl.l an independent Office of Administrative Law 

in the Executive Bruuch 01' State Government, to transfer to it 

the functioll~ 01', lind to rl'nl!o('at" till' existill'!," 1)jvi~ion of Admin­

i~trutivo l'ro(:odurl" 10 lllll<'nd lind Huppknlc'nl 1'. L. l!}()H, (\. 410, 

to nq)(\lIl HI'I.I.ion I; Ihn\'pl' alld 1.0 Il(lproprilll." <.'l'I'l.a.in SllilIH. 

Bf: IT EN,\CTED uy the Sl?lwln and Geneml Assembly of the Statl: 

2 of New Jr:rsey: 

1. (New spclion) 'rhel'e is 11I'1'"l>y esl.nbJished in lh(~ F.xeclIlivc 

~ 1I1':IIwll or til<' Sl.at" (Jovprllnl\'lIl. 1.111' Oni"" or Adlllilli!ltmlivo Law. 

n For the purpose of complying' with the (lro\'i~ion~ of Article V, 

4 Section IV, paragraph 1 of tbe Ncw .Jcrsey Constitution, the Office 

5 of Administrative IJuw is Iwreby allocated within the Department 

(j of State, bul notwithstnnding ~aill allocation, the office ~hall he 

7 independenl of lIny supervision or control by f.he department or 

H by aJlY jlcrsollll.,J I.1wrpof. AR IISI'd in I.his 1Iet:, "ofliep" shull meuu 

!l fh,' ()fIi(~~ of AdllliniHll'ldi\'p Lit\\" 

2. (Npw HP,'.liou) All til<' 1'1I1I<'fi"IlS, (l0\\,I,I'S IIlId dnlil'R J'l'rdol'on' 

2 eXPl'ciscd uy 1.11(' Di\'ision 01' Adlllinistrntivl\ Pro('(~durn in t.he 

a Department of State pur~lIaul to the Administrative Procedure 

4 Act, P. L. 1968, c. 410 (C. 52 :14B-1 et seq.) arc transfelTed to and 

5 vested in the Office of Adminislrati\'e Law created by this am~nd­

6 atory and supplementary act. 

1 3. (New section) The head of the office shall be the director, who 

2 shall be un attorney-at-law of this State. TJ1C director and the 

3 full-time administrative judges shall be appointed by the Governor 

4 with the advice and consent of the Senale. 

5 The director shall serve for a term of fi years, As used in this 

6 aet, "director" shall mpan the Director of the Office of Adminis­

7 trative Law. 
ExPLANATION-MaUer endo8cd In hold·fHc:.ed brackel. [I hue] io the abo\lt' bill 

ia Dol eaaeted .ad I. Intended 1o be omillcod iD 'b" taw. 
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8 'I1he dircctor shall devote his "Ill ire time to th,' duti,'s of hi~ Omi'" 

!1 ami shall !,pcl'i,'p a ~nl:ll'~' Il~ l'rln-i,l"d hy IIl\\", .'\ uy nwnllcy 000111'­

10 ring- in the oniCI' of t.h.~ din'I'i,.r ,1"i11 )". lilk.l ill 110,· ~Ilnll' Ill/lnnl'!' 

]] as the original appointment, hut for till' unexpired term only. 

1 4. (New section) Thc Oo\"('rnor ,Imll nppoint t.he. full-tilllc 

2 udministrativc judgl's wllo ~h:lll S('l'Yl' for terms of ;-) )'"urs /llld until 

:.l the Ilppointml'llt and 'lualiflcllt.iml of their SUCCl's~ors. A vacnni'.)' 

4 ill the otliCl' of fnll-t.ime ndn\inisl rali"e jlld~'e sltall hI' fllll'fl in tltn 

::> Sllll\.C mlllmer as thc original appoint.lIll·nt. 1'01' 1.101' ullexpirl,t1 tenn 

(j onl)'. 

I 5. (Nl'w section) The Director of the Office of Adrllinistrntivl' 

2 Law shall: 

3 a. Administer and cause t.he \\'ork of the office to he performed in 

4 such manner and pursuant to such program us ma)' be required 

::> or appropriate; 

6 b. Organize lllHl reorg:lllizc tlw office, lind est.ahlish snch hurenus 

7 as mny bc reqnirl'd or IIppropriatl'; 

8 c. lDxcept as otherwise provitkd in suhsection I, below, appoint, 

9 pursullllt to the provisions of 'l'it.lP II of the nevised Statutes, such 

10 clerical assistants and other persollllel as may be required for the 

11 conduct of the office; 

12 d. Assign and rellsRi~n pcrsonlll'1 to employnwnt within the 

13 office; 

14 e. Develop unifol1n stulIllal'lls, m1l's of l.Wilkn('.l', and procedures, 

15 including' hut not limited to sl:II111ards [01' tletennining whether a 

16 summary or plenary hearing should be held to regulate the conduct 

17 of contested cases and the rendering of administrative aujudica­

18 tions; 

19 r. Promulgntc and enrorcl' Slll'h rnlc;; for the prompt implemen­

20 tatioll und coordilluted administration of the Adminilltrutive Pro­

21 cedure Act., P. L. 1968, c. 410 (C. 52:14B-l et seq.) as may be 

22 requi red or appropriate; 

23 g. Administer and supervise the procedures relating to the con­

24 duct of contested cases and the making of administrative adjudi­

25 cations, as defined by section 2 of P. L. 1968, c. 410 (C. 52 :14B-2); 

26 h. Advise agencies concerning their oblig-ntions under the Admin­

27 istrat,ive Procedure Act, subject 1,0 the provisions of subsections h. 

28 and e. of scction 4 of P. L. 1!l44, c, :W (C. 52 :17A-4b /lnd 4e) ; 

29 i. ASR.ist agencies in the prepflration, consideration, puhlicat.ion 

30 and interprehltion of adminiRtrativc rulell \'eqllircd 01' appropriate 

:n pursuant to the Administrative ['rocedure Act, P. L. I!l6R, c,. 410 

32 ((:. 52:14B-I et sl'q.); 
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33 j. Employ Ill(' sen'ieps of the S,'\'pl'111 agell<'i,'s Rnd or tJle "m­

34 ployees then'or ill slIch lIUIOII,'r 'mel to ~lIeh extl'nl. I1S Illay 1><' ll/{n"'d 

3;') upon by the director lUHI tlH' chi.. r '~'\I'Cllti\"(· ollit'er of S\H'.h II~nl'Y; 

:J() k. Have I1C&SS to infol'lIIl1tioll NJIlc'cl'1ling tI\l' severnl agellcil's 

37 to asSUI'C tli'at the.v properly prollllligate all rllics re<]lIircd by law; 

38 I. Assig-n full· time ndminisll·ntivtl law judges at superviwry und 

39 otltel' levels who arc qualified in the fiel,l of administrative law 

40 or in subject nmUt>r relRlillg' 10 tile hC'ttrillg' functions of a State 

4] Ilgcncy. A fnll·time m!ntilli>l! rnlive law judgc ><1111.11 lIot hold other 

42 enlployment. 

4~ AdminiRt.rnt.i\'" III\\' jll(!g-('s shall n'ceiv" >lu('h sillurie>l /\8 providt'd 

44 by law. 

45 AdministrlltiV'i' law judges shall bi' attorneys-at-law of this 

46 Stttte, or any persons who 111'1' not attorneys-at-law, but wbo, in 

47 tile judgment of the Governor 01' the director Ul'e <]lIalifierl in the 

48 field of IIdmini~t.rati\'(, 111\\', Illhninistl'lllivi' hearing's lind proceed­

4!J ings in Hubject. matter r"lating' to the hi'arillg flllwtions of a 

50 pal·ticular State agency; 

51 m. Appoint such additional administrative law judges, qualified 

52 in the field of administrntive law or in subject JIlutter relating to 

[)3 the llCoring- fnnetions of 11 Stale ag('ncy, on a temporury 01' case 

54 h:l.~is n" may be nec.ossury for the proper perfOJ'llIIlII(~! 01' tho duties 

5:) of tho office, pUr"lIllnt 1.0 n reasonable fcc schedule I,~tahlishcd in 

56 advance by tbe director. 'l'('mponlry administl'lltive law jndgetl 

57 shall have the Harne qualificatiolls for appointment as pennanent 

58 administrative law judges. 

59 n. Assign an administrative law judge to any agency empowered 

60 to conduct contested cases to preside over such proceedings in 

61 contested cases as arc required by sections 9 and 10 of P. L. 1968, 

G2 c. 410 (C. 52 :1413-9 and 52 :14B-10~; 

63 o. Assign un administrative law judge or otller personnel to 

64 any agency to conduct or assist in administrative duties and 

65 proceedings otller tllan those related to contested cuses or adminis­

66 trative adjudications, including but not limited to nIle-making- and 

67 investigative hearings, if so requested by tile llead of an agency 

{,8 and if tlIe dircctor deems aPlJropriate; 

69 p. Assign un administrative law judge not engaged in the conduct 

70 of contested cases to perform other duties vested in or required 

71 of the office; 

72 q. 'Secure, compile and maintain all reports of administrative 

73 law judges issued pursuant to tLis act, and such reference materiuls 

74 and suppoliing information as may be appropriate; and 
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75 r. Develop and muiut.u.in a program J'or the cOlllinuing trainill!{ 

76 and education oj' udministrativc l"w judgos un,l Itgeuoies in rogard 

77 to their respousibilities uuder this act. 

1 6. (New section) a. Administrntive law jUllgcs ~hlll1 be Ils~igned 

2 by the director from the office to an agency to preside over con­

3 tested cases in accordance with the special expertise of the 

4 administrative law judge; 

5 b. A person who is not an employee of t.he office IIllly be specially 

6 appointed and assigned by the Llirector to an agency to preside 

7 over It specific contested case, if the director certifies in writng 

8 the reasons why the oharacter of the case requires utilization of 

!J a ditl"erellt procedure for assignillg administrative lnw judges than 

10 is e~tahlished by tbis amendulor} and supplementary act. 

1 7. ::loction G of 1'. L. 1!Wil, c. ·11 0 (C. 52 :l4B-G) is Illlltlndell lo 

2 relit! U8 follow8: 

::I ;). (It) Bach agency shall filo [iu the office 0 f tLc Secrc!.ary of 

4 State] with the Director of the Office of Administrative Law a 

G certified copy of each rule adopted by it. 

(b) Each rule hereafter adopted is effective upon filing with the 

7 [Secretary of State] director. 

8 (c) 'l'he [Secretary of Stu tel directonhall: (1) aceept for filing 

9 or publication any rule duly adopted and submitted by any agency 

10 pursuant to tbis act; (2) endorse upon the certified copy of each 

11 rule accepted for filing pursuant to this act the date and time upon 

12 wbich such rule was filed; and (3) maintain the certified copy of 

13 each rule so filed in a permanent register open to public inspection. 

14 (d) The filing of a certified c01>Y of any rule sball be doemed to 

15 establish the rl·lmtl.ablo pre~um[Jtions tLat: (1) it was duly 

16 adopted; (2) it was duly submittell for prepublication and made 

17 available for public inspection at tLe bour and date endorscd u1>0n 

18 it; (3) all requirements of tllls act and of interagency rules of the 

19 [Secretary of State] director relativo to such rule have been 

20 complied with; (4) its text is the text of the rule as adopted. 

21 Judicial notice shall be taken of the text of each rule, duly tiled. 

22 (e) The publication of a rule in the New Jersey Administrative 

23 Code or the New Jersey Register sball be deemed to establish the 

24 rebuttable presumption that the rule was duly filed and that tbe 

25 text of the rule as so published is tbe text of the rule adopted. 

26 Judicial notice shall be taken of the text of each rule published 

27 in the New Jersey Administrative Code or the New Jersey Register. 

1 8. Section 10 of P. L. 1968, c. 410 (C. 52:14B-I0) is amended to 

2 read as follows: 

3 10. In contested cases: 
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4 (a) The parties shullllOt II<' houlld by rules of evi(!Pncl> whether 

5 statutory, common law, or mlopteJ fonnaUy by till> RllJc~ of Court. 

G All relevunt evidence i, adllli~Hible, except liS otherwisl> providod 

7 herein. The [presiding] administrative law judge lIIuy in his 

8 discretion exclude any evidence if he finds that its probative value 

9 is substantially outweighted by the risk that its admissioll will 

10 either (i) necessitate undue consumption of time or (ii) create 

11 substantial danger of undue prejudice or cOlJfu~ioll, The [presid­

12 ing] administrative law judHe shull give effect to the rules of 

]3 privilege recognized by law. [Every party shall have the right to] 

14 Any party in a contested case may present his case or defense by 

]5 omland doelllllentary evidence, [to] submit rebuttal evillence and 

J(j [to] eOIH.lue! Huch cross-exlllllilluti(J1! as may be required, in lhe 

17 dis<:retivn uf I It" admillislmf.i'IJI; l,wJ judge, for II full uud truo JiH­

lH elosuro of tho fuels.
 

H) (b) Notice !lIuy bc tuken of jlllliciully uotieelllJll' facts. 1n llc1di­


20 tion, notice may be taken of generally recognized technical or
 

21 scientific facts within the [agency's] specialized knowledge of the
 

22 agency or admini.strative law judge.. Parties sball be notified either
 

23 before or during the hearing, or by reference in preliminary re­


24 ports or otherwise, of tho material notice, including lIlly staff
 

25 IIlemoranda or duta, ami they shall be ufforded an opportunity to
 

2G contest t.he ffill.tl,rial so noticed. The [agenc." 's] experience,
 

27 teehnieal competence, and specialized knowledge of the agcncy or
 

2H administrative law jud,qe may be utilized in the evaluation of the
 

29 evidence, provided this is disclosed of record.
 

:.10 (c) [When a person not empowered to render 1111 administrative
 

31 adjudiclItion is designated by the ll('ad of the agcllC~' liS the presid­


::12 ing officer, his] All hear;n.'ls of " Rt"I,' ".'Iency l'I;rluired to bc can­


:13 dlwted as ,t contestcd ca,<c 'Il1uhr this act Uf' any ,,1/(('1' law shall bp.
 

34 conducted by an administrative l"w judge as.si,qncrl by tha Directm'
 

35 of the Office of Admini8trative Law, excerJt as providcd by this
 

36 amendatory and sUllplementa,ry act. A rccommcnded report and
 

37 decision [contuinin~] which conl,ains recommended fillding;s of
 

38 fact and conclusions of luw [shall be filed] and which slwlll be
 

38" based upon sufficient, compe.tent, and crcd'ible evidcnce shall be
 

39 filed, not later than 45 days after the hem'ing l:S concluded, with
 

40 the agency in such form that it may be adopted as the decision in
 

41 the case and delivered or mailed, to tbe parties of record with an
 

42 indication of I.he date of receipt by the agency head; and an oppor­


42A tunity shall be afforded each party of record to lile exceptions,
 

43 objections, and replies thereto, and to present argument to the
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44 head of the agency or a majority thereof, pilher orally or in writ­

45 ing, as the agency may [order] direct. The head of the agency, 

46 lipon a review of the record sllbmitted by the administrative 10,10 

47 jlld.lJe, shall adopt, reject or modify the recommended report and 

48 deci~on no later than -15 days ((fter receipt of such recommendfl­

49 tions. Unless the head of the ogenr.y modifies or rejects the report 

50 within such pCl-iod, the decision of the administmtivp. law judge 

51 shall be deemed adopted a.' the final decision of the head of the 

52 agency. The recommended report nnd decision slwll be a part of 

53 the record in the cnse. For good cullse shown, upon certification by 

54 the director and the agency head, the time limits established hel'ein 

55 rnay be subject to extension. 

56 (d) A final decision or order adverse to a party in a contested 

57 case shall be in writing or stated in the record. A final decison 

58 shall include findings of fact and conclusions of law, separately 

39 stated and shall be based only upon the evidence of record at the 

60 hearing, as sllch evidence may be established by rules of evidence 

61 and procedure pro'Tlw!gated by the director. 

62 Findings of fact, if set forth in statutory languag-e, shall be 

63 accompanied by a concise and explicit statement. of the underlying 

64 facts supporting the finding~. [If, in' accordance with agency 

65 rules, a patty submitted proposed findings of fact, the decision'shall 

66 include a ruling upon each proposed finding.] The final decision 

67 may inco?'porate by reference any or all of the recommendations 

68 of the administmtive law judge. Parties shall be notified eitller 

(j9 personally or by mail of any decision or ordcr. Upon request a 

70 copy of the decision 01' order ~llnll be ueliverud or mailed forth­

71 with by registered or certified ulai! to each party and to his 

72 attorney of record. 

73 (e) Except where othenvise provided by law, the administrntivo 

74 adjudication of t.he agency shall be effective on the date of delivery 

73 or on thc date of mailiug, of the final decisioll to the parties of 

76 record, whichever shall occur first, or shall be effective on any 

77 date after tile date of delivery or mailing, as the agency may 

78 provide by general rule or by order in the case. The date of 

79 delivery or mailing shall be stamped on the face of the decision. 

1 9. (New section) a. Nothing in tills amendatory and supple­

2 mentary act shall be construed to deprive the head of any agen'cy 

3 of the authority pursuant to section 10 of P. L. 1968,' c~ 410 

4 (c.:. 52 :HB-10) to determine whether a cuse is contested or to 
;) udopt, reject or modify the findings of fact and conclusions of l~w 

6 of any administrative luw judge. 
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7 b. Nothing in t.his amendator.'· and SIIPP\(o,III·IlI.;1 ry :\('( slm!! hI' 

B construed to affect the conduct of any contested case initiated prior 

9 to the effective date of this act, or the ma!;illg of Iln~' administrative 

10 adjudication in such contested case. 

1 10. (New section) Unless Il specific request is nlUde by th(' 

2 agency, 110 administrative law judge shall be assigned by the 

3 director to hear contested cases with respect to: 

4 a. The State Board of Parole, the Public Employment Belations 

5 Commission, the Division of Workers' Compensation, the Division 

6 of Tn.x Appeals, or to uny agcney not within s0ction 2 (a) of P. L. 

7 1968, c. 410 (C. 5:]:141\-·2 (11)); 

H h. Any /IIutter wlll'n' I.II!' hOlld or tho lI~"lICY, II "olllllli~Hionor or 

!) sevcral r.onllllillSiollerH, /It'o rl''1uir"d to l'undud, or lletel'luino 1.0 

10 conduct the heuring directly and individuully. 

1 11. (New section) This act shull be subject to the provisions of 

2 the State Agency Tl'llnsfer l\ct, P. L. 19i1, c. 375 (U. 52 :HD-1 

3 et seq.). 

1 12. (New ~('ction) Section Ii of 1'. L,19GH, e. 410 (C. 52:141l-·(j) IS 

2 repealed. 

1 13. (New section) All acts alld parts of /lets ineonsistent witll 

2 any of the provisions of this amendatory nnd slIpplelllcntary act 

3 are, to the extent of such inconsistency, superseded and repealed. 

1 14. (New section) To pn,p;lre for the illlplement>1tion und oJlel'u­

2 tion of this uet. the)'(~ is uppropri:ltell to the DiviRion of Adluinistrll­

a t.iv(! ('rol'(!t1ul'l' iu Ull' 1)l'plll't.nll'llI of Stal.e t.1J., SIIIIl of $;jOO,()()().oo, 

.~ 'iiI' oliligatioll 1I1ld l'xl'enditul'll or whil·Ii sllldl 1,1' sllli.iI'pf t.o til<' 

5 uppro\'ul of t.lil' ]lil'l'el:or of 1111' I)ivi,;iou oj' llw.lglll alld ACpollutiug. 

1 15. (New ,;cption) H any prO\'i,;ion of thi" act or thc application 

2 thercof to any person 01' eirClIllIstanee i~ llCld iuvnlid, sueh in­

3 validity sllaJl not afTI'd oU,er provisions 01' applications of tlJe act 

4 which cnn be givell effect without t.lie invalid JlI'ovision or al'plil!lI­

5 tiou nnd to this eud the provisiou,; of this apt lire deelu red to 1," 

6 severable. 

1 16. (New section) This uet shull remain inoperative uotil (j 

2 months following its enactmcnt, except with rcspect t.o thc makill.'':: 

3 of appointments and the taking- of preparatory actions, which may 

4 take effect immediately upon enactment. 
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STATE~IEXT 

This bill provides for a full-time corps of t mined, skilh'd admini­

strative Inw judges to expeelitr the process hy which Stnl<' 

lldlllinist.ral.iye lI;':I'llcil's rlr(~idl' "onlestrd ellS,'s, Ilnd tl) injod 

~reater illlpllrtiality into thaI. prOI'I'S8. If IJrovides rOt· a Htun,ianl­

i,mtion of )Jrocedurc~ nsed in thr conduct of contl'sted cuses lInel tho 

Illuking of administrative :H.ljuuications, incorporating concepts 

first urged by Justice Nutlllln L . .Jacohs, clissl'nting in Mfl.zza v. 

Cavicchia, 15 ~\. ,J. 49,." ;j:Hj (1 !l;)j ). 

Presently, tile Administ.rative Procedure Act. reljuires tllnt ull 

con tested cases involving State agencies bc hea I'd 1.>y u hearing 

officer. The existing system of parl.-timc hearing officers has caused 

delay in tbe disposition of cases, ;1I1tl nnneccssary eXIJen8e to the 

State. In Illany instunecs, the Al.lol'I\('y (,cnerlll eXlJeriences 

difficnlty (Iefending' in court. tlH' IlI'aring" onierr 1"I'Ilor[s, us ndoptl'cl 

hy t.he ag'ency llClld, he,,:lIlsI' IIH'." ,Irf' lIot f'XI","'1y prnplll·od. 

I"urlllt'r, heuring oflicnrs nlll!,lo)'t'cll,.,· tlH' \'IlriOllS :I~I'ncirs involved 

in the decisions beinl\' rendered Ilre oft"n not. impl1rtiul, un ill 

created in part by the fact thai the ag'"ncy head selccted thelll in 

the first pluee. 1:11c concl'pt of cln'~ 1'1'0<:1'8'; of law is 111"'0 undr.r­

mined by the combination of inv«~tig-at.ivr., pro~rclllorinl uncI hear­

in~ functions, nil being- Illhlli"isl.en'd hy t.he sanll! lIg'nn"y 11",1 

sometimes by the SU111C illllivillllal. ("illlllly, tll1~ (,111p!oylllent hy 

tbe State of part-time hearing officers who are attorneys rqn·I'lIent. 

ing clients before other Slat.e ag<:l1l'ies raiseR srriolls issues uncleI' 

the conflicts of interest law, because paid hearing officers, eve" 

those sen1ing part-t.ime, are State officer" or employees subject to 

tbe most strinRent conRicts law rCf1uirement.s. 

Uneler tlJA provisions of this hill, t.hc director of t hc orneI' will h" 

appoint.oll hy t.hn OO"twnor for n 1i-.vC'llr tcnn. n"nrillg omecrs, 

uppointccl h,l' Ute (Iovernor, lind 1'l,lnl.ed I'mploynn" nppoint.oll hy tho 

director sball be deemed to 1.>e employees of 1111 independent office of 

administrative law, allocated 1.0 tbe Department of State. Pro­

vision is made for non-attorney bearing officers in cases where 

technical expertise is more required tban legal expertise. As 

anotber means of e11snring that administrative law judges possess 

expertise in tLe technical field ill wbicb they are bearing matters, 

tbey will not be rotat·ed among agencies, but rather will, perfonn 

duties for a single ag'ency. In I1ddition, the director may assign 

an individual who is not. I1n cmployee of the office if the director 

certifies the reaso"s why the chanlC'.(.l'r of the ease requires a 

ditTorenl procedure for :h<sigl1i".~ tile acllllinistrativo law jndge. 
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The use of full-lime ad1l1inislralive law judg('s will reduce lh,' 

delays which have resulled from part-time officers having to 

respond to the demands of their private careers. 

Administrative law judges will have to forward final recommen­

dations to department heads no later than 4-5 days after the hearing 

has been completed and the de(lnrtment will have to render 11 final 

,Iecision no luter than 4-!i dll)'s or receipt of tht, administrative law 

judge's report. Unless tbe agency head modifies or rejects the 

administrative law judge's report., that report will take effect 4-5 

days after its receipt by the agency head, unless good cause for 

extension is certified by the hearing officer and the agency head. 

This bill eliminates nearly all questions of conRict of interest. 

The time-honored concept of due process of law will be assured by 

the indeppndent nntnre of the new hearing offi('.pr funetion. As 

under existing law, however, til<' hend of an agency will himself 

exercise the ultimate options of adopting, rejecting or modifying 

the setting proceedings. Also as under existing law, single mem­

bers of multimember bodies such as the Board of Pnblie Utilities 

will be able to conduct contested cases. 

An appropriation of $500,000.00 is included for administrative 

expenses. It is anticipated that in the implementation or this new 

act, a substantial portion of lhe operating budget will be derived 

from the budgets of existing departments and agencies the hear­

ings of which will now be undertaken by the new division of 

administrative law. 
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SENATOR ANGELO ERRICHETTI (Chairman): Good afternoon, ladies and 

gentlemen. I would like to call this public hearing to order. I am SenRtor 

Errichetti, Chairman of the Senate State Government, Federal and Interstat~ 

Relations and veterans Affairs Committee. My colleagues are Senators Weiss 

and Laskin. 

The Committee is convened today to hear testimony from interested 

parties on Senate Bill Number 766. If there is anyone present who would like 

to give testimony and who has not notified the Committee, please come forward 

and register with our staff and you will be so heard. 

The bill under consideration is S-766, sponsored by Senator Yates, 

which creates an Office of Administrative Law in the Department of State. 

I would like to call the first witness, Attorney General John 

Degnan. 

A T TOR N E Y G ENE R A L J 0 H N J. D E G NAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

I appreciate the opportunity to appear before you today to testify in support 

of Senate Bill 766. It is always nice as Attorney General to be able to support 

a bill that, as counsel to the Governor in the last session of this Legislature, 

I had something to do with drafting. 

Given that caveat, I would like to wholeheartedly urge your support 

for the bill in the form in which it appears before you today. The statement 

to the bill notes that by providing for a standardization of procedures used 

in the conduct of contested cases, and the making of administrative adjudications, 

the bill incorporates concepts first urged by Justice Jacobs in a dissenting 

opinion, written in 1954. As you well know, I think Justice Jacobs, for a long 

time on the New Jersey Supreme Court, stood out in terms of handling administrative 

opinions - administrative agency opinions - based on his long personal background 

in that area. 

Thus, the need for reform of our administrative procedures has long 

been recognized in the State. In that opinion, the Justice characterized the 

basic problem as the continued policy of concentrating in a single administrator 

wide powers of investigation, prosecuting, hearing, and determination. The 

recognition of this problem was one of the reasons for splitting the licensing 

and investigation and prosecution powers for casino regulation between two 

distinct agencies. That same model, I would suggest - and the Governor has 

pUblicly suggested - needs to be studied in connection with both the ABC and 

the Division of Motor Vehicles. 

~y removing hearing officers from the various departments and agencies 

of State Government and assigning them to a single office of Administrative 

Law, the hearing and determination powers are separated from other administrative 

proc~sses. Thus, administrative hearings can be conducted more impartially 

and the concept of due process of law will be better served. 

The bill also directs the Director of the Office of Administrative 

Law to develop uniform standards, rules of evidence, and procedures, which 

should further expedite the hearing of administrative proceedings. 

The statement to the bill sets out, in clear terms, the goals sought 

to be achieved by its passage. They relate to insurance of due process. The 

bill itself, I think, will shorten the time involved in hearing proceedings 

by requiring that the hearing examiner himself file a report within 45 days 

and that the cabinet official charged with reyiewing that decision has 45 

I 
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examir. 

days within which to act, or the decision has the effect of a final decision. wheQ t 

It also will reduce the number of conflicts which occur through the Cc 

the repeated use on our part of part time hearing examiners. It will allow, 

I suggest, the creation of a body of experts and the bill itself, as you know, be eXE 

provides that administrative law judges will be assigned on the basis of that appoir 

expertise to the extent possible. an exc 

I think, finally, it will insure a greater impartiality in the overall 

administration under the bill. to be 

One criticism of the concept of administrative law judges which has 

been raised at prior public hearings is that by removing the administrative judge that h 

from the regulatory agency, the judge will not develop the necessary and is not 

appropriate knowledge peculiar to that agency's area of regulation. I would 

suggest that the bill answers that criticism by providing that administrative 

law judges shall be assigned to an agency to preside over contested cases, in of the 

accordance with the special expertise of the law judge. 

Trial court judges, for the most part - as you know - are not 

classified according to subject matter and appellate court judges, without 

restriction, must hear appeals from all of our administrative agencies. 

As with the judiciary, the first concern with regard to the assign­ you, M. 

ment of administrative judges should be to insure that cases are heard in a 

procedurally correct manner. If such is the case, the adversary system itself 

will insure the presentation of all of the substantive arguments. Mr. Pel 

The assignment of administrative law judges,in accordance with their ART J 

special expertise, is an added bonus which allows more efficient processing Commis: 

of cases by eliminating the need to educate the trier of facts. On that basis, I woul, 

I repeat, speaking for myself and also for the Governor, I urge your favorable 
hearincconsideration of this bill and I am available at this point to answer any 

questions you may have about it which I am capable of answering. about t 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Thank you. Senator Laskin, do you have any 

questions? adminif 

capacitSENATOR LASKIN: Yes. Mr. Attorney General, do you have any idea 

of how many judges we are talking about? 

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEGNAN: I don't, at this point, have a firm idea. Enviror. 

I think it is difficult to say precisely because of the great number of part­ Insuran 

time hearing examiners which are now used and the fact that they are not assigned present 

adminisin any kind of centralized oversight function which would allow me to tell you 

how many there are. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Do you know how many part-time hearing examiners and why 

we have? adminis 

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEGNAN: I couldn't give you a precise number but impact 

probably hundreds is not unfair. our liv 

SENATOR LASKIN: Hundreds of them? that ad 

and com 

SENATOR LASKIN: I notice that the Election Law Enforcement Commission 

and the Casino Control Commission are not excluded from the jurisdiction of the to meet 

bill. Was that an oversight? the com) 

A'rTORNEY GENERAL DEGNAN: No, it wasn't. With respect to the Casino adminisl 

Control Commission, all the proceedings so far before that Commission have or no bi 

been held in banc or by the Chairman himself, rather than through a hearing 

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEGNAN: More than 100 at least. 
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examiner. So, inasmuch as the bill itself provides that tlwt'€' is ,"1 <'xL'l'pli<'11 

whet}. those cases are so heard, I don't believe that it is necessary to ex<.~mpt 

the Casino Control Commission. 

I would also urge that the Election Law Enforcement Commission not 

be exempted. I don't think that the mere fact that hearing examiners would be 

appointed by the Governor,with the advice and consent of the Senate, warrants 

an exclusion of that agency from this function any more than any other agency. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Who determines whether an individual is qualified 

to be an administrative law judge - the Governor in his appointment power? 

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEGNAN: Yes, basically. The bill itself provides 

that he must be either an attorney at law of the State of New JRrsey or, if he 

is not that, have some other expertise which qualifies him. 

SENATOR LASKIN: But, the Governor makes that decision? 

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEGNAN: That's right, with the advice and consent 

of the Senate. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Right. That is all I have, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Weiss, do you have any questions? 

SENATOR WEISS: No questions. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: There are no questions from the Chair. Thank 

you, Mr. Attorney General. 

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEGNAN: Thank you. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: From the Department of the Public Advocate, 

Mr. Penn. 

ARTHUR PEN N: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am Arthur Penn, Assistant 

Commissioner, Department cE tie Public Advocate. On behalf of the Public Advocate, 

I would like to thank you for the opportunity of appearing here. 

The Public Advocate endorses the goal of an independent, full-time 

hearing officer corps. Thus, we support S-766, but we have some reservations 

about the manner in which the bill seeks to achieve this goal. 

I believe our department has a unique perspective on the state 

administrative process, for we have appeared before many state agencies in our 

capacity as a representative of the public. 

For example, we have appeared before the PUC, the Department of 

Environmental Protection, the Department of Health, and the Department of 

Insurance. Based on our knowledge and experience, we can say th~this bill 

presents a conceptual approach which establishes much needed refdrms in our 

administrative process. 

I will very briefly, and in a general fashion, outline why we support 

and why we need an independent full-time hearing officer corps. The impact of 

administrative decisionson the public is as great, if not greater, than the 

impact of legislative and judicial actions. Every day, some aspect of 

our lives is touched by the administrative decision-maker. It is thus essential 

that administrative decisions be made fairly and impartially, after a thorough 

and comprehensive analytical review. The public interest requires nothing less. 

Unfortunately, our present hearing officer system all too often fails 

to meet this public interest. This is because the expertise needed to resolve 

the complicated, sophisticated, and technical, factual issues in many of our 

administrative cases, cannot be found in part-time hearing officers, with little 

or no background in the subject area of the administrative hearing. 
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Moreover, part-time hearing officers lead to unnecessary delays because that ( 

these officers have other responsibilities. Thus, hearing dates are frequently term 

delayed to fit a hearing officer's schedule. we in 

In addition, to the extent that some hearing officers are employe0s time 1 

of the agency that will ultimately decide the case, there is not the appearance assUIn' 

of impartiality. In matters relating to government, the appearance of im­ it do, 

partiality is as important as the fact of impartiality. so to 

S-766, by establishing an independent, full-time corps of administrative think 

judges meets the problems raised by our old system of administrative hearing 

officers. In short, the bill serves a very important public purpose. altho) 

The major reservation we have is in the provision relating to the just 

Governor's appointment of all full-time hearing officers. I have heard various tive 

figures bandied about as to the number of judges we will need. I assume the were 

number will be somewhere between 150 and 200. Many of these judges will be appoil 

assigned to cases that do not have a significant public impact. All cases are being 

important to the individuals participating in those cases, but many administrative day-t< 

cases have no impact beyond that of the individual participating. 

I think if the Governor were to appoint 150, or 200 hearing officers, the e) 

many of whom would be assigned to what I would consider the lesser type of the L 

cases, we might have an unmanageable system. I think the concept of the Governor effeci 

appointing hearing officers for a fixed term is fine. But, I question the need and WE 

for the Governor to appoint all of the hearing officers who will be needed to langUi 

implement this program. new Sl 

I would think, for example, that perhaps the Governor could appoint accept 

one or two hearing officers for each department in the state and then to the tinue", 

extent other hearing officers are needed, perhaps they could be appointed by the be th( 

director and screened by a special committee. any bi 

With those reservations, the Public Advocate wholeheartedly supports 

this bill. Thank you very much. head ( 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Laskin. officE 

SENATOR LASKIN: Yes. Since you are representing the consumer advocate, be a \ 

I wonder if you could reply to a comment that I would like to make about the cases. 

tenure of these jUdges. These are not tenured judges as we know in our judicial 

system and they would have a five-year appointment under this bill and every 

five years, presumably, they would either be reappointed or new ones would be them, 

appointed. Don't you think, as the consumer advocate, that that is a the hE 

serious problem of political involvement because of the non-tenure aspects of 

this bill? just f 

MR.-PENN: Well, I am not sure it is a serious political problem to be 

because the judges all serve for a fixed term, which I believe is five years. make c 

Presumably, at the end of that term, I would think that the good judges will be 

reappointed. I think so for several reasons: First of all, you have the Cabinet are nc 

members, who are responsible for each of those agencies. If they are satisfied are gE 

with the caliber of the legal work done by the administrative judges, I am sure expert 

that there would be support for reappointment and I think that support would the hE 

be true, regardless of any political affiliation. has a 

SENATOR LASKIN: We all assumed that would be the case when the the ca 

concept of full-time prosecutors came into New Jersey, which most interested recomrr 

parties like. What we have seen with the five-year prosecutor appointment is, 
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that each time there is a change in the administration, if someone's .five-year 

term happens to be up during the change, a new prosecutor is appointed. When 

we in the Legislature - those of us who were not in the Legislature at the 

time but w~re interested in taking politics out of prosecutors'offic~s ­ all 

assumed that the good prosecutors would be reappointed. But, unfortunately, 

it doesn't work that way. Every time there is a new face in the oval office, 

so to speak, there is a new prosecutor when the term is up. Why would you 

ative think that this bill would be implemented any differently? 

MR. PENN: Well, I would say, in response to the question, that 

although there certainly is some merit in the observation. I think there is 

just as much danger, from a political point of view, in having these administra­

IS tive judges on a tenure basis. And, I would also say that if our recommendations 

were to be accepted, you would not have every judge in this full-time corps 

appointed by the Governor, but only a certain number of judges. with the rest 

being appointed perhaps by the director and the people who run the office on a 

ltive day-to-day basis. 

SENATOR LASKIN: There is a provision in this bill which continues 

~s , the existing state of the law to allow the department head to accept or reject 

the findings of the administrative law judge. That is the way it is now in 

effect. WRen a hearing officer files a report, it is merely a recommendation, 

and we call it that. What we have done in this bill is, we have changed the 

language. We don't call it a recommendation, as such, but we say in this 

new section, which was added, that the department head still has the same power to 

c accept or reject. Is it your concept of administrative law judges that that con­

tinue? Even though we call them something different, in effect, it would still 

the be the hearing officer procedure. with really relatively little power to make 

any binding decision. Are you in favor of that? 

ts MR. PENN: Absolutely. I think the only person who can decide is the 

head of the agency. I think it probably would be illegal to have the hearing 

officers have any more power than is built into this bill. I think it WOUld] ~ 
ocate, be a very bad precedent to have hearing officers empowered to decide these 

cases. 

cial SENATOR LASKIN: Rather than calling them administrative law judges? 

MR. PENN: Well, yes, administrative law judges -­ whatever you call 

them, in a sense they are. and will be, hearing officers who will preside over 

the hearing and submit recommended findings of fact. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Now, if that is the case - if what we are doing is 

just putting a robe on a hearing officer - because that is how I view this bill, 

to be perfectly honest with you - why the bill? How do you really think it will 

make any change? 

be MR. PENN: Well, I think the bill will make a substantial change. You 

.inet are not just putting a robe on a hearing officer. What you are doing is, yOll 

.ed are getting hearing officers who are highly qualified, competent, and have 

Ire expertise in the particular area. When you look at the administrative process, 

the hearing officer - or hearing judge, whatever you want to call that person ­

has a very important role. Although it is true that the agency head decides 

the case, it is the hearing officer who sits through the evidence and makes 

recommended findings of fact and conclusions of law. Thus, that hearing officer's 
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other 
repo~t is essential in the process and a good report, after a very complicah'd 

hearing, is absolutely necessary for the decision-maker to make an informed Goven 

judgment about the case. judgei 

SENATOR LASKIN: I agree with you completely. But, this bill isn't 

going to make that any more or less significant because a hearing officer today 

is a very important person in the administration of administrative justice, so 

to speak, and I still go back to the same problem I have with this bill: I 

envision hearing officers,that we now have, being made fUll-time with large Aronsc 

salaries, with a robe on. They will do the same thing as they are now doing RIC 

but they will be making a lot more money and their opinions are no more of thE 

significant than they are now. I agree that conceptually we ought to make mind, 

some changes, but I don't really see how the consumer advocate can determine yester 

that this bill makes the required changes that were recommended by a Supreme entitl 

Court Justice some time ago. patho~ 

MR. PENN: Well, I can. only say that the present system is inadequate. and si 

By establishing a full-time independent corps of hearing officers, or hearing contai 

judges, I think we are going a long way toward reforming the present inadequacies been n 

in the system. and ei 

SENATOR LASKIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. if I 

SENATOR ERRICHE'rTI: Mr. Weiss. 

SENATOR WEISS: I have no questions. in its 

SENATOR HERBERT: I have two questions, Mr. Penn. First of all, do Houses 

you think there should be a more specific and detailed requirement in the bill, It is 

me telother than just the Governor's recommendation for the so-called qualified non­
Generaattorneys? Do you think there should be more specific requirements? 
importMR. PENN: Well, I think the fact that non-attorneys can be appointed 
was dias hearing officers is very good. I wouldn't have problems with detailing the 
with a.qualifications of those non-attorneys, but I think it would be extremely difficult 
this Sto do so and I wouldn't have the slightest idea of where you could begin. That 
there'is why I would endorse it in its present form. If someone could come up with 
or empsome suggestions as to how you could delineate these qualifications, I don't 

think there would be anything wrong with that. But, I do think it is important 
sure tJto have non-attorneys have the opportunity to serve as hearing judges. Beyond 
memberthat, in terms of qualifications,I guess the screening mechanism by the Senate 
agency.in their advice and consent function would be sufficient to take care of that 
are chisituation. 
si l1gleSENATOR HERBERT: But, the Governor must first recommend? 
adequa(MR. PENN: That's correct. 
adminiiSENATOR HERBERT: The second question is: Are you not disturbed by 
signifithe fact that there are no proceedings for the removal, for cause, of the 
employnjudges? You are disturbed by that? 
and thEMR. PENN: Yes. 
agenCiESENATOR HERBERT: I am too.
 

MR. PENN: Yes, that is another point that I think could raise
 
fortuneserious problems in the implementation of the bill if all of these judges are 
a copyto be appointed for a fixed term. Again, I go back to the suggestion I had 
long tiearlier, where only a certain number of judges would be appointed by the 
"The NE

Governor for a fixed term, where the majority of your hearing judges would be 

appointed through other means and presumably subject to removal, just as any 
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other employee would. 
But, if you have 200 full-time hearing judges, all appointed by the 

Governor for five year terms and there is no way to get rid of any of these 

judges, I think you are going to run into some very serious problems. 

SENATOR HERBERT: Correct. Thank you. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Mr. Penn, thank you very much. 

MR. PENN: Thank you. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: New Jersey State Bar Association, Richard 

AI:()nsohn. 

RIC H A R D A RON SOH N: Good afternoon. Senator Errichetti, members 

of the Committee on State Government, I would like to begin, if you don't 

mind, with a poem which I came across just by accident when I was relaxing 

yesterday between National Collegiate Association basketball games. It is 

entitled "Spring", by Henry Timrod and it says: "Spring, with that nameless 

pathos in the air which dwells in all things fair: Spring,with her golden suns 

and silver rain, is with us once again." And, so is a newly introduced bill 

containing a concept for an independent corps of hearing examiners. There have 

been no less than about 30 bills that have run through legislative committee 

and either the Senate or the lower House of this State and I think it is time ­

if I can say so - that the bill pass. 

Let me say, by way of introduction, that I recognize that no bill 

in it~ entirety ever goes through - or very seldom goes through - one of the 

Houses of the Legislature in this State. There might have to be some changes. 

It is the concept that the State Bar Association is so concerned with. Let 

me tell you why. Just by way of background, I served as a Deputy Attorney 

General in the middle '60's and was counsel to the Secretary of State and, more 

importantly, to the State Division on Civil Rights. In the latter capacity, I 

was directed by then Attorney General Arthur Sills to actually get into a car 

with an employee of the State Division on Civil Rights and to travel allover 

this State to virtually 16 of the 21 counties to obtain restraining orders where 

there was discriminatory treatment against minorities - whether it was in housing 

or employment, or whatever. 

I am familiar with that agency and I recognize its purpose: and I am 

sure that every member of the Senate and the House - at least I hope every 

member of the Senate and House - is fUlly familiar with the purpose of that 

agency. I really feel, having been in the agency now on behalf of people who 

are charged with acts of discrimination, that that agency, without meaning to 

si~gle it out, only demonstrates - I mean, to ferret it out - the total in­

adequacy with state administrative law in its present form. You know, state 

administrative law is going to make the courts, within time, pale into in­

significance. With urbanization and suburban living and housing concepts and 

employment relationship concepts, the courts are not going to be the be all 

and the end all in the years to come; it is going to be the state and county 

agencies,and I think that they ought to really be brought into the 20th Century. 

Directing myself to some of the problems, I meant to - although un­

fortunately I did not get back from court in enough time this morning - photostat 

a copy of an article that I had authored in the New Jersey Law Journal quite a 

long time ago. It was in the beginning of 1973. Basically, it is entitled: 

"The Need for a Corps of Independent Hearing Examiners in State Administrative 
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Agencies." With your permission, Mr. Chairman, I would like to photo that and 
are de 

send it on to the Committee. I don't think it really answers all of the 
for di 

questions, but it answers some of the questions from a practitioner's point of 
the tj

view and it isolates some of the problems from a practitioner's point of view. 
is goi

I will forward that on tomorrow morning. 
like f 

There are certain bugaboos that are always raised each and every year 
takes 

with regard to the concept itself. Let me just address myself to those. The 
taken 

first and foremost one, which always comes up, is administrative expertise, which 

is absolutely ridiculous. Taking one of the most technical agencies of all, 
broad 

let's take pensions. Pensions utilizes, in those statutes governing the four 
cretio 

or five pension funds, words of art that even the courts have a lot of trouble 
but th 

with. If there is a word of art, whether it is accrued credits, or some fancy 
is a p

word or term, an administrative employee can always be put on the stand to 
with s 

explai~ at least from that particular agency's point of view, what that term 
where 

or word of art, means. 
suppor 

As far as the details of expertise, the rotation which is cited in 

this particular bill will take care of that, if rotation according to expertise 
is ver 

is utilized by the head of the office. But, I would even suggest that the aware 
rotation is not that necessary. Anyone who is an attorney and who does his 

the 10 
homework can understand most concepts with regard to agencies. So, to talk 

result 
toward expertise doesn't get us anywhere. There is nothing-- Let me say, unchal 
parenthetically, what you people are going to hear about as members of this 

subjec 
Committee, if you haven't heard about it already, before this bill is moved to has to 
be released from Committee - and I hope it will be - is, you are going to get a So, yo, 
lot of calls and a lot of correspondence from heads of agencies in this state of fac 
who are opposed to this concept. They are opposed to the concept for a very good 

reason: They don't want to lose control. They want to have the particular separa·, 
hearing officer within their four walls, on their payroll. I don't mean to rotatiJ 
deprecate the integrity of the agency, but subject to communication,allegorically state· 
he could be having lunch from time to time with either a witness, who is on the 

hot seat because of a mistake made by the agency, or with the agency head,and 

it just does not make sense. new. 
The problems created now are created by the hearing examiners being 1967. 

within the agency itself. You can't have a man who is investigating a cause has be! 
of action be in a position where he has to rule on matters of evidence and matters Admini~ 

of procedure and, again, be in a position where he has to adjudicate, at least got wat 
by way of recommendation, the result. It is a combination of investigatorial, 

adjudicatorial and legislative to some extent because he is part of the agency Somethi 
and therefore he is attempting to further what he considers to be, rightly or too mue 
wrongly, the agency's purpose, and that shouldn't be. appoint 

This prejudice presently created by the informality of administrative 

hearings -- that is not the way we do it. The Public Utilities Commission has in Sect 

come along with this concept. At one time, approximately four years ago, they offici" 

were staunchly opposed to it. They now recognize that it makes sense. But, let law JUG 

me tell you about a case I had before the Public Utilities Commission that you because 

can't believe. It involve.d a consumer and an application by us on behalf of the bill is 

user of the telephone service for discovery which is very plainly provided for with as 

in the administrative code that relates to the Public Utilities Commission. the age 
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The answer we get	 from the utility is. '''l'hat is not the- way thin<Js' 
j are done, Aronsohn." They said ,in a letter of objection to, the application 

for discovery, "Well, he can interrogate the Telephone Company witnesses at 
E the time of hearing." Now, if that is not archaic-- I am not saying the agency 

is going to go for that, but it is that tendency of familiarity in an agency 

like Public utilities, between the utility and between the agency itself, that 
ear	 takes the adversarial nature of the proceeding out of it and it shouldn't be 

taken out of it. 
'hich So, it is the informality that should concern this Committee. The 

broad discretion vested in the hearing examiner and the parameters of that dis­

cretion are really unlimited. And I don't mean to say this bill will limit it, 
.e but the director of a particular division or of an agency of State Government 
:y is a pretty bUsy person. If he gets a pretty well documented hearing report, 

with specific findings of fact and conclusions of law, it is the unusual case 

where he is going to go behind that and look to see whether the findings are 

supported by the transcript, which may be many volumes in length. 
:l	 So, I think that someone who is independent and is not on that payroll 
r:tise	 is very, very important. And there is something else that I want you to be 

aware of that creates tremendous problems for someone litigating and who is on 

the losing side. There is a presumption of regularity that attaches to the 

result of a state agency determination: that is,case law of the state. But it is 

unchallenged case law. Therefore, when a dispute is lost by whomever, he is 

subject to the setting in of that presumption and he has a tremendous burden. He 
to has to show that the result is not bottomed upon adequate evidence in the record. 

·t a So, you can see the importance of the initial step in the recommended findings 

.e of fact and conclusions of law • 
•	 good There are other alternatives that could be posed. You could have a 

separate agency - a separate division within the agency itself. You could, by 

rotating present hearing examiners.- some of which are attorneys at law of this 

Lcally state - between agencies, I imagin~. solve some of the problems. 
the The only way the problem is really going to be solved is from the bill. 

)d Now, with regard to the bill itself, let me just say that this concept is nothing 

new. California has it. Nevada had it. It started it and implemented it in 

ing 1967. Pennsylvania has it as of 1969. It is part of the Federal system. It 

has been part of the Federal system since 1941. It was originally part of our 

matters Administrative Procedure Act, or at least the proposed legislation,and then that
 

ast got watered down in order to get it through: they deleted it.
 

al, The bill itself, I think, is really an excellent bill. It would be
 

ncy something of which the Senate of this State could be proud. There is nothing
 

or too much wrong with it. I think that if judges are left to the Governor's
 

appointment power, administrative law judges can be as well.
 

ative I am a little troubled by the wording. If I can just turn to the bill,
 

s in Section 5 on page 3 of the official copy reprint - I don't think it is an
 

hey official copy reprint yet - it has words to the effect that the administrative
 

let law jUdge can conduct or assist in administrative duties. That troubles me a little 

you because I think it is counter-productive. I think that is the one thing that the 

)f the bill is designed to prevent - that the administrative law judge not get involved 

for with assisting in administrative duties or getting into the policy objectives of 

the agency or getting into the clerical aspects of that. Maybe it needs refinement. 
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Maybe that is not what is meant, really. The way it is left now - "administrative 

duties and proceedings, other than those related to contested cases" - is rather 
Assoc 

broad. corps 
I only leave you with the question, shouldn't non-lawyers be subject speci 

to appeintment? The State Bar has no objection to non-lawyers being subject 

to appeintment. I think, really, oftentimes someone who is over-technical, who lam 
has been to law school, can harm more than he can help. I don't think a law of ad 
degree-- Let me give you an example: The State Department of Education - my than 
firm does a lot of work before that Department. I think they do an excellent elimi 
job with lay personnel. I think the hearings are conducted in a fair manner that 
and I think everybody gets an oppertunity to be heard. So, I have no problem 

with that. I think it is something the Committee should take a "look see" at. indep 
I think - and I talk personally now - that it is not such a bad the p 

idea to have tenure set in after a while, so long as - as Senator Herbert so a pel 
correctly pointed out - there is some means of getting rid of a tenured person appei 
in the event that he or she is not discharging their duties correctly. The ''indep· 
problem with tenure is that sometimes people get a little bit too comfortable. tive 
But, on the other hand, you don't want someone subject to the political vicissi­ to sp. 
tudes, as someone mentioned, of the oval office. it, bu 

I think probably - although I am not sure about this - that as far 

as discharge is concerned, Senator Herbert, they would be subject to the-- There systel 
is one overall statute that relates to discharge of State employees. have 

So, in conclusion, I hope that this, again, doesn't turn into the law s, 
annual rites of Spring. I don't mean that as a means of criticism. It is not He sa. 
so easy when you are on the firing line. But, I can't understand why the pit­ all 1), 

falls that exist within the system now cannot, and should not be, negated. effec' 
Before I close, if you just take a look at the one agency -- I hate times. 

peinting towards the Division on Civil Rights. I think it is a well conducted subje< 

agency. But, from a hearing standpoint, I think it could be very much improved. if I 

Let's look at the statutory matrix surrounding that agency. The Director of the pass 

Division on Civil Rights is employed by the Attorney General, at will - okay? numbel 

He has no tenure or legislative appeintment. He is advised on legal matters 

by the Attorney General himself - the man who appoints him. He is directed in 

the execution of policy by the Attorney General of this State. He is subject Feder, 

to the Attorney General's criticism as an administrator. The Attorney General Now, t 

appeints the hearing examiners. The hearing examiner makes recommendations be sel 

but that hearing examiner himself - or herself - is paid by the agency and the So, yc 

hearing examiner is sitting within. albeit on a temperary basis - he is part-time enougt 

the agency's doors. It is not a question of whether there is actual bias. It Servic 

is a question of the appearance. There should be a dignity that attaches to handlE 

administrative hearings, just as it does, hopefully, to court proceedings. And, 

I respectfully request that now is the time - 1978 - to bring these agencies. so unders 
impertant a part of our daily life from a jurisprudential peint of view, into the You ar 
20th Century. Thank you. of hav 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Laskin, do you have any questions? It may 
SENATOR LASKIN: I presume that you mix some of your personal remarks 

in with the authorized representation of the Bar Association? which 
MR. ARONSOHN: Well, I guess that is a very fair comment, Senator these 

Laskin. I might say to you-­
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I just want to know if that is true?SENATOR LASKIN:
 

MR. ARONSOHN:
 That's true. The Board of Trustees of the St,'\l<' Bal 

Association, in the beginning of 1975, approved only the concept of an independC'l1t 

corps of hearing examiners, leaving the details of the implementation of a 

specific bill to the Senate. 

SENATOR LASKIN: With regard to the tenure, just so you understand, 

I am only asking questions in an attempt to help me resolve this whole concept 

of administrative law judges. I am not an advocate of tenure anywhere other 

than in the judicial system. In fact, I would be very happy to see tenure 

eliminated from every single statutory position in the State of New Jersey. But, 

that is not my point. 

My problem is, what do you do about the problem you raised, the 

independence of these judges? Now, I recognize the lack of independence under 

the present system. But, if we have a five-year appointment which is really 

a political appointment - I don't mean that in a nasty sense: it is a political 

appointment and it comes up every five years- how does that help you solve the 

'lndependen~' problem, because now we won't have the independence on the administra­

tive agency head but we will have the independence on the political system, ,so 

to speak? I don't know the answer to that. I am not saying that tenure solves 

it, but I would be interested in hearing your comments on it. 

MR. ARONSOHN: Well, if I had my "druthers" as far as the judicial 

system is concerned, I guess I would have to say I was in favor of tenure. I 

have seen the comfort that it brought to at least one judge,-for whom I was 

law secretary, and who is, unfortunately, now deceased - when he get that tenure. 

He said to me words to the effect: "Well, now they can all go to hell. They can 

all be damned. I will take the phone calls, but it is not going to have any 

effect on me." Let's face it, when we talk about phone calls, these are sensitive 

times. People are people and these administrative law judges are going to be 

subject to phone calls: they are going to be subject to correspondence: and, therefore, 

if I had my "druthers" as far as this bill is concerned - I don't know that it would 

pass through the Legislature - I guess I would be in favor of tenure, after a 

number of terms, when he has shown that he is competent. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Or some other system to keep them truly independent. 

MR. ARONSOHN: I can suggest another system. I imagine, as in the 

Federal system, you ~ould make them subject to the Department of Civil Service. 

Now, the problem is that the Department of Civil Service is, itself, going to 

be serviced, as I understand the bill, by the Office of Administrative Procedures. 

So, you get into a conflict problem once again. But - and I really don't know 

enough about this - I imagine certain State officers get tenure through Civil 

Service after a certain period of time. I know the way the Federal system 

handles it is to make them subject to Civil Service. 

I think the important thing is to get them out of the agency. I 

understand the point you are making, Senator Laskin. It is an excellent point. 

You are never going to have purity in this. In other words, it is a question 

of having the "best possible." It might be that this has to be done in stages. 

It may be that-­

SENATOR LASKIN: Unless we can come up with some other legislation 

which would perhaps increase penalties or establish new crimes for making 

these phone calls to the administrative law judges. That is something that I 
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how c(
don't know if we spent too much time on. But, I believe it may deter the phone 

statu! 
calls, or whatever else occurs during these hearing procedures, or before them. 

major
Perhaps that is another thought - a very strong criminal statute, prohibitin~ 

any kind of intervention at all by anyone. 
delegc

MR. ARONSOHN: I just suggest this in. passing, since I have been 
and wl 

through this leigslative process for the past four or five years. My general 
for tl 

feeling now is - and it is not from a defeatist point of view - please try to 
seriol 

som(~get the concept through. I realize what can happen. Everybody from part 
contel 

of the State is going to have some criticism of this bill. It is the best 
agend

bill I have ever seen in the area. It is excellent. It needs very little 
settlE 

revision, as far as I am concerned, but if. it does need some minor revision, 
detern 

then I respectfully suggest, and hope, that those revisions can be made in an 
could 

effort to get the concept through the Legislature. Too many times in the past 

that has been defeated by basic opposition from State agencies. That is where 
head, 

the pressure comes from. 

SENATOR LASKIN: If we are going to continue with this whole concept 
the cr 

of independence - and, of course, I think everyone agrees with that as a concept ­
becaue 

is there any reason why the Bar Association does not suggest that we take the 
they a 

Public Employment Relations Commission exemption from this statute? Because 
a brea 

I agree with your comments about the ridiculousness of expertise. PERC is no 
In an 

different than any other agency and I don't know why, if we are going to adopt go all 
this type of act, that they wouldn't be covered by it also. fact-f 

MR. ARONSOHN: I think they should be subject to it. You know, or alt 
what happened was - the history of this, if I can just go back a little - that Divisi 
at one time they were going to exempt all multi-member commissions, whether it 

was the Public Utilities Commission or the Public Employment Relations Commission, 

and then, as I said, the Public Utilities Commission realized it would be to their 

advantage to have a cleaner type of proceeding - I know cleaner is not the right 

word to use - but, a better type of proceeding with someone who came from judges 
an outside agency. Now, maybe this is the skeleton of that original thrust. I Thank 
don't know. I don't really see any rational reason to keep them out. There 

is nothing complicated about labor relations law either; I agree with you. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Weiss. to see 
SENATOR WEISS: Mr. Aronsohn, since all of us would like to see 

these administrative officers, or judges, be fair and independent, and find Klinge 
the way they are supposed to find, I direct you to page six, Section nine ­

new section: "Nothing in this amendatory and supplementary act shall be con­ on the 
strued •.• " Genera 

MR. ARONSOHN: Yes. I thin: 
SENATOR WEISS: Now, take the last line of that: " ••• to determine I woul' 

whether a case is contested or to adopt, reject or modify the findings of fact I waul. 
and conclusions of law by any administrative law judge." Does that not infringe merits 

on the independence of the administrative judge? Attorn. 

MR. ARONSOHN: Well, as far as -- with regard to the latter part of nomina-
it, it certainly does not because you are going to get into a whole statutory goes OJ 

problem here. Each statute that has been passed by the Legislature usually Commis: 
vests in the departmental or division head the right to make determinations on the 
and decisions with regard to disputes involving that agency. I don't see 
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how constitutionally or statutorily that could be culled out of those 

statutes without a major revision of all the statu~es relating to all of the 
1\. major agencies and divisions. 

What does bother me - and I didn't even notice it before - is, it 

delegates to the department or division head the right to determine what is 

and what is not a contested case, and basically then to set the wheels in motion 

for the call for the rotating administrative law judge, which is very, very 

serious because what could happen is he could say, "I deem this not to be a 
l contested case, but merely to be something informal that can be settled." Many 

agencies have informal hearings where they crystalize the issues and try to 

settle them. That bothers me because if it is he or she that is going to 

determine when the hearing officer ought to be sent out to the agency, that 

could be a protective device against having a hearing officer. 
it SENATOR WEISS: Assuming that you had a real strong-minded agency 
:e head, and he did, in fact, reject or modify the findings of a judge--? 

MR. ARONSOHN: He is subject to review. If findings of fact are 
~pt the crucial part of administrative jurisprudence -­ That's what it is all about 
~ept - because you get these big records and usually the issues are not as defined as 

they are in a court of law. You know, we have pre-trials and they say there is 

a breach of contract, or whatever the issues are, and they are pretty well defined. 
) In an administrative agency you really, because of the liberal rules of evidence, 
:)t go allover the place and you need someone to refine that. So, therefore, the 

fact-finding process is extremely important. If he rejects those fact-findings, 

or alternatively modifies them, he is subject to judicial review in the Appellate 
at Division. 
it SENATOR WEISS: Thank you. 
ssion, MR. ARONSOHN: Thank you. 
their SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Herbert. 

ight SENATOR HERBERT: Mr. Chairman, it seems that we not only have 

judges that write poetry in Bergen County, but attorneys that can quote it. 
I Thank you very much. I have no questions. 

MR. ARONSOHN: Thank you. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Mr. Aronsohn, thank you. 

MR. ARONSOHN: Yes, sir. Thank you, Senator Errichetti. It is nice 
to see you. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: The New Jersey State Bar Association, Alan 
Klinger. 

JULIUS WILDSTEIN: My name is Mr. Wildstein. I originally was placed 

on the list to speak on the bill but in view of the fact that the Attorney 

General has spoken and I being a hearing officer in the Civil Rights Division. 

I think it would be improper at this time for me to express any views whatsoever. 

I WOUld, however Therefore, I will not address myself to the merits at all. 
lct I would, however. like to correct two statements made by Mr. Aronsohn. not on the 
~inge merits of the bill but, rather, a statement of fact. One of them is that the 

Attorney General appoints the hearing examiners. The statute provides that the 
of nomination of hearing examiners is made by the Attorney General, but the statute 

cy goes on to say that that person must be confirmed by the Commission, which is a 

Commission appointed by the Governor, and so forth. Therefore.there is a check 

on the appointment of hearing examiners. 
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evide 
The other point-­

in th 
SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Mr. Wildstein. 

Appel
MR. WILDSTEIN: Yes? 

very
SENATOR ERRICHETTI: I let you go far enough. 

with 
MR. WILDSTEIN: What? 

with 
SENATOR ERRICHETTI: That's enough. Now, you are out of order. 

they
MR. WILDSTEIN: All right, I didn't want to talk on the merits. I 

evide 
just wanted to correct something. 

not d 
SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Mr. Klinger. 

A LAN K LIN G E R: If the Committee please, my name is Alan Klinger and 
I thi 

I am Chairman of the Administrative Law Section of the New Jersey State Bar 
Contr 

Association. I do not have the handicap of ever having worked for the State, or 
as Ie 

been an Attorney General, or anything else. I just practice law in Hackensack, 
that 

New Jersey, and have had the occasion, where clients have come to me and said, 
appli 

"Here I have a complaint against me from an administrative agency" and the bottom 
add t 

of the complaint is signed by the commissioner. Then we get a notice of hearing 
is a 

and the hearing is before the commissioner and we get there and the commissioner 
offic 

of one particular agency is presiding. We try to offer evidence and the commissioner 

says why the strict rules of evidence don't apply. Consequently, we are confronted to th 
with a situation where the accuser, the prosecutor, the witness, and the judge conne 
is the same person. of in 

Now, I am not as skeptical as my colleague, Dick Aronsohn. In 1960, Ands 
as Vice Chairman of what was then a special committee of the Bar, we suggested the appoi 
creation of an administrative code and the adoption of an administrative procedure Banke 
act. We saw then Governor Hughes and we were told it could never happen because be de 
it would be too expensive - but it has happened and we have an administrative Act. 
code and we have an administrative procedure act and we have, generally, an could 
administrative process we can be proud of. But, we do have defects, defects 

that can be cured by the concept of this bill. lawye 
Now, I think the concept of this bill can add to what I think is a subst 

reputation New Jersey should have for its judiciary and for its law enforcement, is a 

generally. The bill - and I agree, it is the best bill I have seen of this will 

type - provides, among other things, for the creation of a director of administra­

tive law, a director of the office of administrative law,who would, as it were, 

be an administrator of this corps of hearing officers, who could develop a 

corps of officials who would develop expertise in certain areas. And, I think, 

for example, there is expertise. When you go into the Public Utilities Commission 

on a rate case, for example, there is a certain manner of procedure, not because 

it aids one side or the other, but because it is expeditious. And, this bill rUles 

makes provision for that. This bill says that a hearing officer may take 

judicial notice, or the administrative equivalent, off~cial notice, but he will to th 

put it on the record. go fr 

Now, Senator Weiss and Senator Laskin particularly asked as to what in ev 

is the difference if we still have the decision made by the head of the 

department, the cabinet officer, and the like. The difference is this: Our and a 

record, the record that is reviewed in the Appellate Division, is the record out 0 

that is made before the hearing officer and unless we have a hearing where we "I wi 

have an opportunity to offer evidence - not necessarily legally competent know' 
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evidence but evidence that will fit a set of rules of evidence to be developed 

in this administrative process - we don't have anything to talk to the 

Appellate Division about, except arbitrary and capricious action. This is a 

very difficult burden, so we say give us the opportunity to make our record 

with a hearing officer who is independent. Give us the opportunity to deal 

with a set of rules of evidence, albeit not the legal rules of evidence because 

they are not always adaptable to administrative proceedings, but rules of 

evidence so that we know what they are before we go into a hearing and that do 

not differ from agency to agency. 

Now, Senator Laskin asked the question of the Attorney General - and
 
.•d
 I think a particularly pertinent one - as to the non-exclusion of the Casino
 

Control Commission. We have all read in the newspapers about the action you took,
 
, or
 as legislators, to encourage the project that is afoot in Atlantic City. I submit
 
ck,
 that the existence of an independent hearing, of an administrative judge, to whom
 
d,
 applicants can apply in regard to actions taken by the Casino Commission, would 
ottom add to the confidence of the administration of that bill. I think right now that
 
ring
 is a particularly appropriate consideration in creating this independent hearing
 
oner
 officer. 
unissioner In regard to the appointment of administrative judges and in regard 
.fronted to the consideration of their qualifications, the appointing authority now, in 
1ge connection with the appointment of judges, avails himself of a series of sources 

of information. He goes to Bar Associations. He goes to other public bodies. 
160, And similarly, for example, if there were hearing officers that were being 

:ed the appointed, it might well be that the various trade agencies - the New Jersey 

:ocedure Bankers Association might be considered in regard to what hearing officers might 
~ause be dealing with the banks, people who become skilled in dealing with the Banking 

Ie Act. There is certainly nothing wrong with that. And, the appointive authority 

could avail himself - the Governor - of those sources. 
ts I really just want to urge upon you how important we practicing 

lawyers think it is to have independent hearing officers, number one,for the 
a substance and, number two, for the appearance - for our clients to say, "Here 

ment, is a man who is going to hear the evidence, and make a recommendation which we 

will have an opportunity to review in our judicial process. Thank you. 

nistra- SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Laskin. 

were, SENATOR LASKIN: I have no questions. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Weiss. 

ink, SENATOR WEISS: No questions. 

mission SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Herbert. 

,cause SENATOR HERBERT: Yes, just one. Mr. Klinger, you said that the 

.11 rUles of procedure do differ from agency to agency substantially? 

MR. KLINGER: Yes, sir. There are agencies which adhere more stric~ly 

will to the legal rules of evidence and other agencies which don't. And, when you 

go from agency to agency, you really don't know what is going to be admitted 

that in evidence or not. 

For example, in a judicial proceeding, if I make an offer of proof 

1r and a judge denies me the opportunity to offer that proof, I will say, "Okay" _ 

~d out of the hearing of the jury, or the jUdge if he be the finder of fact _ 

we "I will make an offer of proof on the record so that the Appellate Court will 

know what facts I have." That is practically unheard of in administrative agencies, 
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two moat least within my experience. 
wholeSENATOR HERBERT: I have no further questions. 
somethSENATOR ERRICHETTI: Thank you, Mr. Klinger. 
as 60MR. KLINGER: Thank you. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Department of Civil Service, Joseph Lavery. 
concepJ 0 S E P H L A V E R Y: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee. 
be ade·My name is Joseph Lavery. I am Director of Hearings and Regulations for the 
officeNew Jersey Civil Service Commission. I appreciate the opportunity to come before 

you on behalf of S. Howard Woodson, the President of the Commission, and the 

members of the Commission themselves. 

The Civil Service Commission, and President Woodson, wholeheartedly 

support the concept of an independent hearing officer corps to conduct plenary 

hearings on behalf of state agencies. 

S-766 is singularly consonant with the beneficial safeguards proposed 

by Justice Jacobs in Mazza v. Cavicchia, in his dissent. For essentially the 

same reason, Civil Service, as one of the oldest independent regulatory bodies 
tors,

in State Government, has long recognized the need for impartial resolution of 
JAM 

disputes. 
I have 

We are also extraordinarily sensitive to due process requirements 
for th 

because of the inherent sensitivity of appeals, which our Commission adjudicates ­

public employees versus public employers for the most part. 
Admini 

We support the philosophy expressed in the statement to the bill. 
Admini 

We will send to the Committee more detailed comments, including statistics on 

the number of hearing officers, where they are located, etc. admini 
But, the President and the Civil Service Commission are most anxious agenci 

to avoid any adverse impact on the administrative due process provided under standc 
Title II of the Civil Service Act. Unforeseen practical drawbacks often have a has a] 
way of counteracting even the most carefully contrived legislation. Their the ut 
concern focuses mainly in three specific areas. The first is the need to hearir 
avoid a backlog and delay in Commission decisions. The second is the need for and h~ 

flexibility and options in calling on hearing officers, or administrative law indivi 
jUdges as they are named in the bill. And, last, is the ever present fiscal attorr 
=nstraints. reduc~ 

We are concerned over the recent assumption of jurisdiction of at torr 
affirmative action appeals under Executive Order 61 and the previous Executive 

Order 14. We have reason to expect that a significant number of these disputes Divisi 
will warrant plenary hearings and be characterized as contested cases. Educat 

We are worried by the prospect of losing that flexibility we now great£ 
enjoy in assignment of hearing officers as needed. Our Commission is able to of an~ 

draw now from a pool of 37 per diem hearing officers. If, for any reason, one admin: 
hearing officer is not available, the matter is easily remedied by rapid last tiona: 

minute assignment of another hearing officer. divis: 

In addition, it is obvious that the sheer number itself of hearers 

we employ enables us to adequately respond to our overall quantitative load. polic~ 

We have tried to stress the necessity that any new legislation at least match argum, 

the unique and fortunate hearing officer staffing levels the Legislature in th, 

afforded us in 1971,. through Chapter 153 when we first obtained the hearing be at-

officer program that we now operate. Prior to that time, our hearings were and D. 

as much as 18 months to 2 years behind. At the present time, it is approximately the c, 
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twO months from the time of hearing granted to the time of hearing held. The 

whole process from the time of the complaint until the time of the decison is 

something like five to six months and going down. We can schedule as many 

as 60 herings a month. 

So, in a word, the Commission supports the legislation and the 

concept. Our only concern is that the Office of Administrative Procedure 

be adequately funded to absorb the load that would probably revert to that 

office. 
I am available for 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: 

SENATOR LASKIN: I 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: 

any questions you may have. 

Senator Laskin? 

have no questions. 

Senator Herbert? 

SENATOR HERBERT: No questions.
 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Mr. Lavery, thank you very much.
 

MR. LAVERY: Thank you, sir.
 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: The New Jersey Association of School Administra­


tors, James J. Dwyer.
 

JAM E S J. D W Y E R: Senator Errichetti, Senators Herbert and Laskin.
 

I have with me Philip Kirschner who is governmental relations representative
 

for the Association.
 

I am speaking on behalf of the New Jersey Association of School 

Administrators concerning S-766 which, if enacted, would establish an Office of 

Administrative Law within the Department of State. 

As I understand the proposed legislation, it will establish full-time 

administrative law judges to expedite the process by which State administrative 

agencies decide contested cases, inject greater impartiality in the process, 

standardize procedures used in the conduct of contested cases - and reference 

has already been made to Mazza versus Cavicchia-eliminate problems caused by 

the utilization of part-time hearing officers, provide for more expertly prepared 

hearing reports, eliminate potential conflicts where investigative, prosecutorial, 

and hearing functions are all administered by the same State agency and/or 

individual, eliminate the conflict of part-time hearing officers who are 

attorneys and who also represent clients before other State agencies, and 

reduce the delays which have resulted from part-time hearing officers who are 

attorneys and who must also attend to the demands of their private practice. 

The New Jersey Association of School Administrators urges that the 

Division of Controversies and Disputes in the New Jersey State Department of 

Education be excluded from the provisions of S-766. This Division has had the 

gre~test positive impact on the administration of public education in the State 

of any of the other components of the Department of Education. School Boards, 

administrators, attorneys, and education organizations rarely agree on organiza­

tional matters, but there is agreement on the importance of maintaining this 

division. 

We could support its inclusion if it were clear that some larger public 

policy issue was involved, however, an analysis of Senate Bill 766 supporting 

arguments reveal how far this is from being the case. In listing the defects 

in the present administrative procedures, none of the defects listed can fairly 

be attributed to the work of the hearing examiners in the Division of Controversies 

and Disputes. On the contrary, their efforts have been consistently praised by 

the courts, attorneys, and public school administrators. Mr. Aronsohn, himself, 
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of ealluded to this today in earlier testimony. This Division has provided stability 

during the past decade of accelerated social change. It has fairly adjudicated 
hearsuch matters as school desegregation, student rights, teacher rights, voting 

irregularities, vendor complaints and a host of other minor and major matters	 out 

of t
ranging from school milk bids to transsexual teachers. During the period from 

to ~ 
1949 through 1976, under seven different Assistant Commissioners, all of them 

tivE 
school administrators, this Division has rendered 1,766 decisions, 99% of which 

have either not been appealed. or have been affirmed by the judiciary. There is 
crit 

no record of judicial displeasure with the quality of the record developed by 
bVE 

the Division's hearing examiners. The inter-agency cooperation between this 
othe 

Division and the attorney general's office is a model of governmental cooperation. 
in a 

PERC and the Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund boards will attest 
hear 

to this fact-that there are no jurisdictional disputes between the Division and 

other agencies that may from time to time adjudicate matters relating to public 
not 

schools. 
of f 

Since it can be clearly demonstrated that the rationale for change 
Gove 

suggested by the bill's summary statement does not apply to the Division, we 
cont 

could argue that there is clearly reason to exclude it from the bill's provision, 
befo 

but our concern cuts even deeper. 
appe 

We argue that this proposed change will be in effect a dramatic change 

in school governance in New Jersey and we urge that it be considered with that in 
this 

mind. This is not merely the creation of another agency to do the same job; this 
Educ 

measure insures a qualitative difference in the manner with which that job or 
two 

service will be performed. It will render the Commissioner of Education's 
exer 

decision on school matters subservient to the reports of theoreticians who are 

bringing to the adjudication their own experience and frame of reference. These 
rece
 

administrative judges will not be employed by the department or in any real waybe
 
a fo 

responsible to the Commissioner of Education. Yet, the Commissioner will be 
appe
 

totally responsible in the public's eye for his decisions. In our judgment, this
 
and 

could result in a shadow government unduly influenced by a few who are insulated 

from the consequences of their decisions on the school system. In their zeal to woul 
be theoretically correct, they may easily fail to value the importance of the Depa 
presumption of correctness principle that has guided the Division so well during time 
these past 100 years. If local school boards, administrators, and teachers sion 
lose the discerning ear of a practitioner, the quality of hearings will be educ 
totally dependent on theory, which in education falls short of being exact. and 

Our concern for the emphasis on theoretical jUdgment, which is what an quir, 
administrative judge would bring to the process, lies in the fact that it eliminates Comm 
practical and clinical decisions that cannot be fully expressed in well-constructed uti I 
testimony, thereby reducing the weight that insight and experience can provide Depa 
in the formulation of social policy. Depa 

Hearing Examiner's reports, prepared by persons who have had experience an e. 

in public schools as practitioners, have, in the past, served to ameliorate the was 
zealous theoretician with the proclivity to centralize decision-making as far regi, 

away from those involved as possible. hear 

The Division of Controversies and Disputes in the Department of 

Education has a 100 year record of proving that controversies arising under the prep. 

school law can be heard by school men who would naturally be concerned with the time: 

well-being of the school system, without a hint of scandal, impropriety, or lack 
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of excellence. 
ity With respect to concentrating powers of investigation, prosecution, 
d hearing, and determination in a single administrative agency, I would like to point 

out that in Mazza versus Cavicchia, a suit challenging the validity of an order 

of the Director of the Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control suspending a license 

to sell alcoholic beverages, the question of hearing procedures by the administra­

tive agency was raised. 
:h In his dissenting opinion, Justice Jacobs pointed out that " •.• repeated 
is criticisms have •.• been voiced with respect to particular phases of the administra­

tive process as exemplified in the Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control and in 

other agencies •••. " The most persistent criticism has been the concentrating 
tion. in a single administrative agency, wide powers of investigation, prosecution, 

hearing and determination. 
od The first of these two processes, investigation and prosecution, are 
ic not and never have been procedures of the Department of Education. As a matter 

of fact, the Department of Education, more than any other Department of State 

Government, has been almost exclusively an independent hearer and determiner of 

controversies arising under the school laws. with two separate parties contending 
ion, before the Commissioner. The Commissioner conducts a thorough hearing on the 

appeal before him, affording both parties full due process. 
lange The facts clearly support the Department of Education's position that 
,t in this purpose of the bill does not in any way apply to it. The Department of
 
this
 Education is the best example in this State of an agency which is limited to the 

two processes of hearing and determination of appeals, and which does not have or 

exercise power to investigate or prosecute. 
~e In the hundreds of cases controverted before the Commissioner in 
lese recent years, only in two rare instances did a matter arise other than through 
Naybe a formal petition of appeal to the Commissioner. One was a reference from an 

appeals judge on an integration case to have it remanded to the Commissioner 
this and the other dealt with condemnation of an old school house building. 

ated With respect to the practice of hiring part-time hearing officers, I 
to would like to point out that this purpose of the bill does not apply to the 

e Department of Education either. The Department has always had its own full-

ring
 time personnel as hearing officers. Each of these hearing officers is a profes­

sional educator who has spent his entire adult lifetime in the service of public 

education in this State and possesses the high standard of educational expertise 

and understanding of, and training in, school law and administrative law re­
at an quired to perform this function. In only three instances since 1851, when the 
.iminates Commissioner was empowered to decide school controversies, has the Department 
;tructed utilized the services of a hearing officer who was not a full-time e~ployee of the
 
.de
 Department. These three instances resulted from a shortage of personnel in the 

Department and the necessity to assign a hearing officer to a matter requiring 

an extensive number of hearing days. One of those three examples, for example, 
the was the recent - several years ago - North Brunswick versus New Brunswick 

regionalization breakaway - sending and receiving - that had over 80 days of 

hearing itself in the process. 

With respect to the concern for a need to provide for more expertly
 
the
 prepared hearing reports, I would like - which we have heard mention of many
 
the times today - to point out that the office of the Attorney General can attest
 
lack
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to the standardization and uniform high quali ty of the Depa~·tment'shear i lICJ contr< 

officers' reports and the decisions rendered by the Commissioner. organ 

The State Board of Education, the Appellate Division of Supe~'ior Cou~·t, exper 

and the New Jersey State Supreme Court have commented with approval on the quality 
appliof the fact-finding, treatment of law and final determinations contained in the 
courthearing officers' reports and decisions of the Commissioner. More importantly, 
respothe record of decisions rendered by the State Board, Appellate Division, and 
accurSupreme Court on review of decisions rendered by the Commissioner clearly dis­
procecloses the quality of the Commissioner's original determination. 
it isThe Courts of this State have, on occasion, remanded matters regarding 
dictieducation to the Commissioner in order to have the benefit of his educational 

expertise. Also, the New Jersey Supreme Court has, on several occasions, 
Divisinterpreted the role of the Commissioner in the State's constitutional and 
on whlegislative plan to provide and administer a thorough and efficient system of 
opini

free public education, looking with favor upon the utilization of the Commissioner's 
decis

educational expertise. The Court has repeatedly pointed out that, in regard to 

educational controversies: "His" - meaning the Commissioner's - "function is 
heari 

admittedly to sit as a receiving body which, however, is charged with the over­
laws 

riding responsibility of seeing to it that the mandate for a thorough and 
State 

efficient system of free public schools is being carried out." 
and 1:: 

It is the judgment of the New Jersey Association of School Administra­
hope!

tors that the New Jersey State Department of Education needs to be excluded from 
dispu

the provisions of the bill in order that the Commissioner of Education not 
with 

be seriously impaired in carrying out his required functions. It is the New Jersey 

Association of School Administrator's judgment that the existing arrangement best 
as pc 

serves the purpose of enabling the Commissioner to perform his duties, including 
tion 

the proper determination of educational controversies. 
such 

The Department of Education should be excluded from the provisions 
racic 

of this bill because the primary purpose to eliminate the combined power of state 
and c 

agencies to investigate, prosecute. hear and decide does nol apply in any way 

to this Department. Two, the Department has only utilized a part-time hearing 
deper. 

officer in three instances out of hundreds of cases heard. Three, the Depart­
freqt: 

ment's full-time hearing officers possess the educational expertise and knowledge 
merit 

of school law necessary to assist the Commissioner to best perform his duties. 

Four, the office of the Attorney General will attest to the uniform high quality casef 
of the Department's hearing officers' reports. Five, the State Board of Education, techr 
the Appellate Divison of Superior Court, and the New Jersey Supreme Court have 

parat 
commented many times with approval on the fact-finder's treatment. And, finally, 

concJ 
the existing system, in the judgment of the Department, best serves the purpose 

of enabling the Commissioner to properly and most adequately perform his duties. the c 
Currently,under the supervision of the Assistant Commissioner of and 

Education in charge of the Division of Controversies and Disputes, there is a staff appL 
of full-time, well-qualified hearing examiners who spend approximately 70% of their befol 
time hearing cases and preparing reports of findings and fact, conclusions and actic 
recommendations for the Commissioner of Education's consideration. The Division'S of a 
function continues to rest on the philosophy that school problems should be stab 
decided whenever possible by persons familiar with school matters on the combined publj 
basis of legal principles and educational expertise. not t 

It is essential, therefore, that hearings involving school law 

20 

You are Viewing an Archived Copy from the New Jersey State Library



· Caul't" 

quality
 

I the
 

.tly,
 

.d
 

d.is­

garding
 

nal
 

I of 

lissioner's 

Ird to 

1 is 

over­

inistra­


i!d from
 

t 

New Jersey 

ent best 

eluding 

ions 

of state 

, way 

,aring 

~part­

mowledge 

lties. 

quality 

Education, 

: have 

finally, 

::>urpose 

duties. 

of 

is a staff 

0% of their 

ns and 

Division's 

be 

combined 

lW 

controversies be conducted by hearing examiners in an atmosphere and within an 

organization of not only administrative law principles, but also educational 

expertise. 
The hearing examiners must keep pace with the increasing volume of 

applicable legal information resulting from new laws and recent decisions of the 

courts. The nature of the position of hearing examiner, and its accompanying 

responsibilities, is almost entirely problem-solving and requires the thorough, 

accurate and consistent application of understanding of school law and legal 

procedures to the already-referred to wide range of school legal problems. Thus, 

it is considered essential that the hearing examiner function under the juris­

diction of the Department of Education. 

Consistently over the year, the Commissioner and, the staff of the 

Division of Controversies and Disputes have been building a record in each case 

on which the Courts of the State, when called upon, have been able to render 

opinions effectively on appeals brought before them from the Commissioner's 

decisions. 

The remaining portion of the time of the Department of Education's 

hearing examiners is spent in serving as a resource of information on school 

laws to other divisions of the Department of Education, to other Departments of 

State Government, to the County Superintendent's of Schools, to the personnel 

and boards of education of local school districts and to the public at large, 

hopefully, for the purpose of preventing the occurrence of controversies and 

disputes. This portion of the duties of the hearing examiners is closely allied 

with the litigation function. 

Under present procedures, all appeals are litigated as expeditiously 

as possible. It is true, however, that in some instances completion of litiga­

tion is delayed by the complexity and time-consuming nature of many of the cases, 

such as those involving proposed regionalization of school districts to achieve 

racial integration, applications for termination of sending-receiving relationships 

and charges against teaching staff members under tenure, for example. 

The time generally required in the resolution of matters varies, 

depending upon whether very prompt disposal of emergency matters, which arise 

frequently and unexpectedly, is required or whether full plenary hearings on the 

merits of controversies are necessary. 

It is important to note that in addition to the hearing process, many 

cases arising under school laws require extensive periods of time for related 

technical correspondence, pre-hearing conferences, legal research, and the pre­

paration of reports of findings of fact and arguments of law, setting forth 

conclusions and recommendations for the Commissioner of Education. 

The fourth expressed purpose of this bill, to eliminate attacks on 

the due process concept caused by the combination of investigative, prosecutorial 

and hearing functions within the same agency is, as I have indicated, not 

applicable to the Department of Education. Of the hundreds of cases controverted 

before the Commissioner in recent years, only in several rare instances was 

action initiated by the Department of Education. These involved the condemnation 

of a schoolhouse and a matter of school integration. In these matters, both 

statutory law and court decisions required action by the Commissioner to effectuate 

public policies. I might add that the Commissioner and the State Department are 

not the object of these cases either. 
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under the present procedure, parties to all controversies are offered 

complete due process in accordance with established rules of procedure adopted regal 

by the State Board of Education, and all matters are adjudicated in a fair, withj 

judg~unbiased and understanding manner.
 

The responsibilities of the Commissioner to make certain that the public
 
rais£policy requiring a thorough and efficient system of free public schools is main­


tained and that the terms and policies of the school laws are faithfully effectuated,
 

have been described in numerous decisions of the courts of this State. The
 
·100 )entire policy of the Education Law ,as interpreted by our Appellate Court, calls 
so w£for submission of questions of school administration to the Commissioner in 
seierorder that his expertise may be utilized. The Commissioner is the State official
 

most cognizant of the demands on teachers and other problems involved in the
 

effective operation of schools. For this reason, the New Jersey Supreme Court
 

has, in many cases, required controversies involving the School Laws to be
 

submitted in the first instance to the Commissioner.
 

Judicial authorities plainly evidence a legislative intent and a 
or itpublic policy that the Commissioner should decide all controversies involving
 

school law or educational policy and that other possible forums - arbitratorg
 

as well as courts - should defer to the expertise of the Commissioner and to his
 

overriding responsibility to make certain that the terms and policies of the
 
have

school laws are being faithfully effectuated.
 

I do recognize, parenthetically, Mr. Chairman, that the bill does
 

permit, obviously, the Commissioner of Education to have the final say in the
 
shall 

hearing examiners' reports - the administrative judges' reports. But, from 
eont~ 

an effective point of view, it is our belief that that would not be a satisfactory 
law ­

substitute for the current system ~n the absence of the kinds of abuses and 
law 

concerns that were legitimately raised earlier today by other witnesses - and 
lnvol 

I am sure are a concern of the Governor and the Attorney General. We don't
 

contest those comments. We are just saying that in every case where there is a
 
is U­

concern, as it is related in the bill and in prior testimony, that the Department 
to tt 

of Education does not fit into this category. It does not have these concerns,
 

these abuses, or these potential conflicts. It has full-time hearing officers.
 

Therefore, for the reasons outlined above, the New Jersey Association
 
type.!'

of School Administrators asks that the Department of Education be excluded from 
under 

the provisions of this bill. Thank you very much for your attention. 
of th 

" SENATOR ERRICHETrI: Senator Laskin. 
You k 

SENATOR LASKIN: You would agree, though, that if the Department
 

f Educatlon was as other state agencies, generally a party to the proceedings,

;; and r 

that the arguments you make to exclude them woul,l not not apply?
 

DR. DWYER:· I think you aJ:·e absolutely correct. Thi s would
 
can't 

be a very serious concern. But, since this isn't the case, I wanted to call
 

your attention to it.
 

SENATOR LASKIN: And, of course, you pointed out that the Department
 
ment 

of Education - and I can't think of any other similar department - is the only
 

one that actually is a hearer. When these cases come to the Department of
 of Ed 
Education, they are not usually cases involving the state agency - that is, the New J 
Department of Education. We ha 

DR. DWYER: That's correct. 
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SENATOR LASKIN: They come from the towns and municipali t i,~s but, \~ it'll 
red 

regard to the other state agencies, these are cases generally eman~tinq (~om 
j 

within and so there would be a need to have an independent administrative law 

judge - you would agree to that? 
DR. DWYER: I would say. Senator Laskin, that - and I am glad you 

public 
raised this point - it is not our intent to speak against this bill today. 

in-
SENATOR LASKIN: Right. 

'ctuated, 
DR. DWYER: It is that there is a peculiar situation that for over 

100 years has existed and because of that peculiarity and the way it is working 

so well - education is, and I hate to admit this, more of an art than a 

science - and some of the concerns that have been laid out-­
i.cial 

SENATOR LASKIN: Some people would disagree with that. 

DR. DWYER: Well, I don't know. 
rt 

SENATOR LASKIN: That it is more of an art than a science.
 

DR. DWYER: Well, it is not a science -- let's stop there maybe.
 

I would agree that it is not our intent to speak against this bill
 

or its provisions. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
'S 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Herbert. 
) his 

SENATOR HERBERT: Dr. Dwyer, in the new section of the bill-- Do you 

have a copy of the bill? 

DR. DWYER: Yes. 
3 

SENATOR HERBERT: On page 4, section 6 "Administrative law judges 

shall be assigned by the director from the office to an agency to preside over 

contested cases in accordance with the special expertise of the administrative 
factory 

law judge." That seems to me to meet your objections. If the administrative 

law judge is an expert in law - school law - he would be assigned to cases 
nd involving school personnel. 

DR. DWYER: You see, we have a couple of issues here, Senator. One 
is a 

is that there is rt grandfather possibility here, or of bringing on non-lawyers 
Irtment to this. 
~rns , 

SENATOR HERBERT: Correct. 
:ers. 

DR. DWYER: And if there could be a guarantee, for example. that the 
i.ation 

types of hearing officers that would be assigned would also bring not just 
from 

understanding of law, which we feel is important, but also an understanding 

of the educational forum itself -- but, there can't be any guarantee like this. 

You know it and I know it. 
t 

SENATOR HERBERT: That is why we are here. We are trying to trim 
ings, 

and possibly amend the bill. 

DR. DWYER: Yes, I understand that and I also understand that you 

can't have language that covers every kind of possible concern. 
11 

SENATOR HERBERT: Yes.
 

DR. DWYER: What we are saying is, right now it works in the Depart­

'tment 

ment of Education. It has worked for over 100 and something years. 
only 

I am sitting here, by the way, not as an employee of the Department 

of Education; I am a Superintendent of a public school district in Northern 
3. the 

New Jersey. I have been involved in controversies and disputes on both sides.
 

We have won some cases and we have lost some cases, but it is really an effective
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way to operate and we feel there is so much happening in the educational arena 

over the last ten years - and it is continuing to this day - that we don't 

really want to complicate your problems or the Governor's problems or the 

Department of State's problems any more than they have to be. And. we 
or 

feel that, even in terms of some of the other agencies that have been exempted 
Ne 

from this bill, a stronger argument can be made for the Department of 
on 

Education even prior to some of those. 

I guess to put it in colloquial speech, why tillnper with a good thing? 
co 

It is working here and almost everyone who has been involved here, who spoke in 

favor of the bill - even ~ncludinq Mr. Aronsohn who made an exception that ....i 
no one prompted him to make used the Department of Education as an exception an 
to the kinds of concerns that he was raising. That is our point. he 

SENATOR HERBERT: Even in those cases that you lost, although you on 
weren't happy with the decision, were you satisfied that the case was heard Me 
properly? 

DR. DWYER: Yes. The type of scope and flexibility of limits of he 
introduction of evidence or position is amazing and the patience and the real ti 
expertise on the part of the hearing officers is amazing to anyone who hasn't fu 
been involved and who was involved for the first time. ti 

I have never heard anyone complain that their side - and many times, fr 

by the way, they permit a third party to come in on these cases; that is not Al 
unusual - can't get their day in court, so to speak, or that they can't get co 

their positions across. It is only after, when they are finding fact, that they 

do assess this type of testimony. So, no one ever gets the opinion when dealing sy 

with the Department of Education that they have been frozen out or that there de 

haven't been effective procedures followed. Over the years - and this isn't 

just recently I am talking about - this has been the case. I 

SENATOR HERBERT: What about the contention by supporters of the of 

bill that it would shorten the time of decision? 

DR. DWYER: I don't think that is going to-­

SENATOR HERBERT: You can't have an average timo, but.-­

DR. DWYER: I don't think that .is tl very effe<'tiv0 CliHlS0, if yuu 

want my comment. in the bill, even i[ you take the Department. out, and the 

reason is because it only talks about after the hearings are concluded in 

45 days. There is no kind of limit, or schedule, that could be anticipated. 

You know. the hearings could theoretically-­ I mentioned the North Brunswick! 

New Brunswick case that went on for 80 hearing days and they were not 80 

consecutive days, so you can imagine how long that type of situation can last. Ja 

Now, I am not ~aying that should have been shortened or not shortened, but J 

the 45 day thing,I think, is a misleading kind of factor because it only 

indicates in the bill, as I read the bill, that it is only from the point that Sc 

the hearing is ended that the administrative judge's report should be submitted 

to the commissioner of the particular agency. And then, of course, the next 01 

step would be the 45 additional days for the commissioner to make a ruling. he 

SENATOR HERBERT: Do you know if, for a fact, there are any part-time 
L€ 

hearing officers in the Division of Education? 
Cc 

DR. DWYER: They are all full-time hearing officers. 

MR. KIRSCHNER: There are 8 positions for full-time hearing officers, 
pI 

6 of which are staffed at the moment. 
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SENATOR HERBERT: I didn't think so. Okay, thank you very much. 
rena SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Thank you very much, Dr. Dwyer. 

DR. DWYER: Thank you. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: The Department of Treasury, Thomas Bush. 

THO MAS BUS H: I am pleased to be here on behalf of the Treasurer of 

Ipted New Jersey, Clifford Goldman,and to read the statement in support of this bill 

on his behalf. 
The Treasurer had intended to be here personally, but a schedule 

thing? conflict has prevented that. 
,ke in The establishment of an Office of Administrative Law, staffed 

;l.t with full-time administrative judges, will achieve greater governmental efficiency 

\ exception and fairness. As government has grown more complex, the role of administrative 

hearing officers has expanded. Yet, much of this important work is conducted 

you on a part-time basis by persons hired through widely varying selection systems. 

rd Moreover, compensation rates vary substantially between departments. 

While steps are already being taken to bring greater uniformity to 

of hearing officer reimbursement rates, the most effective reform requires the crea­

real tion of a centralized office of full-time administrative jUdges. Reliance on 

,asn I L full-time administrative judges will enable the State to budget hearing officer 

time more efficiently. The State itself will be able to avoid delays resulting 

times, from hearing officer schedules which accommodate the needs of part-time officers. 

not Also, the creation of this new office will eliminate the kind of large-scale 

Jet contracting discretion which this Administration has avoided wherever possible. 

lat they In the long run, it is expected that the establishment of a centralized 

1 dealing system, with full-time officers, will be more efficient, provide higher quality 

there decisions and better serve the public. 

sn't That concludes the Treasurer's statement. To the extent possible, 

I am available to answer questions and also Mr. Patrick Kennedy, of the Department 

the of Treasury 'also, is here as well. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Laskin. 

SENATOR LASKIN: No questions. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Herbert. 

you SENATOR HERBERT: No questions. 

he SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Martin. 

n SENATOR MARTIN: No questions. 

•ted. SENATOR ERRICHETTI: No questions? Thank you, Mr. Bush • 

,swick} MR. BUSH: Thank you. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: The New Jersey Association of School Attorneys, 

\ last. James L. Wilson. 

Jut JAM E S L. W I L SON: Mr. Chairman. members of the Committee, my name 

is James Wilson. I am the representative of the New Jersey Association of 

It that School Attorneys. I am the current president of that organization. 

Ibmitted I asked for this opportunity to speak on this bill because the 

next organization I represent feels that the bill contains a grave risk of serious 

Lng. harm to our educational system. Title 18A constitutes a plan compiled by our 

Jart-time Legislatures over the years to carry out the educational mandate of our 

Constitution. Basically. it is a good plan - susceptible, I am sure, to improve­

ment, but still good enough that in seeking improvement. we should not risk the 

:Jfficers, present level of performance. 
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decisj 

These are particularly critical times. The Legislature recently there 

enacted Chapter 212 of the Laws of 1975, which, with the regulations that money 

followed, contain new directives, rights and procedures. Many of these aro yet NewoJ( 

to be tested. Legal problems will arise as Boards of Education and the staffs 

they employ attempt to carry out these directives. To avoid catastrophe, there an in< 

must be a forum for rapid and reliable resolution of these questions. This its 0\ 

forum must be educationally oriented, but have as well an understanding of thc the d( 

legal standards to be applied. The Division or: Controvcrsies and Disputes is 

so organized. finan< 

SENATOR LASKIN: Mr. Chairman? Pardon me, Mr. Wilson, I don't wClnt new s\ 

front(to appear discourteous but may I just go a little bit out of order at this 
inter(time and ask a question that may be very pertinent at this time? 
be extSENATOR ERRICHETTI: Yes. 
well~SENATOR LASKIN: Mr. Wilson, I presume - and I think that the members 
the 5<of the Comnittee may presume - that you are going to echo the sentiments of 
inspe<the last speaker: That you join in his position - and, o[ course>, I know the 

School Board Attorney's position personally - in eliminating the Department 
The Ntof Education, Controversy Section, from the bill. Is that basically your 
educalposition? 
attenlMR. WILSON: Yes, Senator, that is correct. I think I may have ono 

or two minor points where, rather than differ from him, I think they arc an 
have,amplification of his testimony - things that occurred to me, as opposed to 

things that occurred to him. If you would like me, in the interest of time 

SENATOR LASKIN: Right. 

MR. WILSON: Certainly. I have a couple of exhibits here that 
JAM

perhaps illustrate things better. First of all, in 1953/'54 - I picked this as 
He wa: 

the year in which I commenced the practice of law - twelve decisions by the 
but i: 

Commissioner, together with two Appellate decisions, and all of the amendments 
ColTU1li.t 

to school law in an 83 page pamphlet. 1975, the last bound copies of our school 
atten< 

law decisions - 1,167 pages and one of the things that I would uroge on Lhe 
of th(

Committee and on the Legislature as a whole is, before you play around with 

a system that is working, examine a few of the matters that came before the 
ChaiIl1 

Division of Controversies and Disputes. You will find them to have a great 
Relati 

deal of technical content and policy which is a very important element of the 
membel 

qualification of the hearing examiner. opposi 
I don't question for a moment that the appointments to this Board 

will be competent appointments for the most part, but they need a great deal. raise< 
Let me add something from my own experience: The hearing examiners takes 

are the representatives of the Commissioner. They are not in an adversary it. 
position themselves. They are hearing, usually, adversary cases and they are 

living on a day-to-day basis with what is going on in education. I have them adminj 
take intermissions during a hearing to go check on something that they did not in Sor 
consider themselves to be up-to-date on. Willi, 

Now, New Jersey is somewhat unique in that we report -- First of all, volvir 
not every state, you understand, has a Commissioner with appellate powers. welle 
New Jersey is somewhat unique in that there are a handful of them but it is not State 
the rule among the states of the United States. So, what comes out of the 

Commissioner's office is watched by the rest of the United States as an iSSuef 
example -- what is going on in the firing line. You get detailed, quick 
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decisions here that never find their way into the Appellate Courts. Therefore, 

there are answers on the smaller questions, the ones that don't have a lot of 

money behind them - very helpful and has, over a long period of time, brought 

New Jersey to prominence in the field of education. 

These are of sufficient importance that our organization finances
 
:fs
 

index, which is not -- I think this is the first one that has an index ofan 
in it. It has a subject index so that we can find our way throughits own 

the decisons of the Commissioner.
 
the
 

Last year, when Chapter 212 was enacted, our organization also 
i.s 

financed a study, which was reported, on the implications of Chapter 212 for 

new subject matter for controversies, with which we could expect to be con­

fronted, trying not to get caught short. I think this might very well be of 

interest to you. If you are not satisfied that this is something that should 

be excluded, that there is a special expertise involved in this, you might very 

well want to check on this. It is available through my organization or through 

the School Boards Association. I think that you would find this well worth 

inspection.
·.he 

I mentioned the nationwide importance of New Jersey's decisions. 

The National Organization on Legal Problems of Education reports regularly on 

educational decisions throughout the country. So, our decisions come to their 

attention, throughout the United States. 
ono.
 

Let me stop at that point and say if there are any questions that you
 
n 

have, I would be delighted to respond to them. 

SENATOR ERRICHET1'I: Are there any questions? (no response) 
c - ­

Thank you for coming, Mr. Wilson. (see page lX for Mr. Wilson's full statement) 

NJEA, Walter O'Brien. 

JAM ESE. M 0 R FOR D: Mr. Chairman, Mr. O'Brien is in the State House. 
,is as 

He was prepared to give the testimony of the New Jersey Education Association 
Ie 

but is running into the difficulty of being in two places at once. The Joint 
nents 

Committee on Public Schools is also meeting at this hour and he stepped out to
 
school
 

attend that. So, with your permission, I will proceed with the testimony 

of the New Jersey Education Association. 
i.th 

I am Jim Morford, Associate Director for Government Relations. Mr. 
he 

Chairman, members of the Senate State Government and Federal and Interstate 
at 

Relations and Veterans Affairs Committee, on behalf of the more than 83,000 
the 

members of the New Jersey Education Association, I wish to record with you our 

oppoSition to Senate Bill 766, in its present form. 
ard 

With due respect to Senator Laskin, we may address some of the points 
.eal. raised by Mr. Dwyer and the previous witness, however I think our testimony 
liners takes a somewhat different thrust. With your permission, I would like to present 
y it. 
. are 

This legislation would make sweeping changes with respect to the
 
tho.m
 

administrative hearings. Changes in the present system, indeed, may be indicated 
_d not 

in Some areas. NJEA believes this bill goes too far. When he was Attorney General, 

William Hyland called for a new division of State Government to hear cases in­

of all,
 

volVing banking, insurance, and public utilities matters. That suggestion may 
:>. 

well have real merit, but S-766 would envelope nearly all of the agencies of 
is not 

State Government, including the one with which we are most concerned, education. 
he 

State agencies dealing with state employees and internal departmental 

issues may share a commonality of interest. NJEA believes that the Division of 
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controversies and Disputes within the State Department of Education d'l<:'':-; 11~)~ 

share such a comrnonali ty of interest wi th the other state agenc ies. We LU-~~ admit 
very much concerned that a "pool" of hearing officers - administrative law 

that 
judges, if	 you will - will not have the necessary expertise in the complex area Schoo 
of education law to assure due process. Creating still another costly agency 

degrE 
within the bureaucracy may appear to some to bl; reform, bu~ NJF./\ believes that 

this bill in its pr0.sont form is nild [or· tl,(' pill> I. i r schoo 1:; or N,'w ,ler-spy "nd 
procE 

bad for the people who work in tllCJII. COlnmi 
The present system under the Division of COJ\trov(~r-sies and Di.sput"~3 beyor 

is understaffed. Tlle proposed law does nothing to correct the understaffing. comfc 
Keeping the hearing procedure under the direct supervision of those charged 

with the administration of New Jersey's vast educational system is, in NJEA's of ac 
opinion, essential to provide due process, guarantee adequate safeguards and the· J 
assure necessary expertise. 

stat' 
Mr. Chairman, our State's educational system has been t,ho vic:Lim of 

Will 
too much chaos in recent years. We ask that you spare public schools (rom the 

be a: 
provisions	 of S-766. 

We have a number of concerns about thi s leC)i:31 al·ion <lnd i '·tl j OIp,1l' 1 
bill 

on··N(~w J0r:sey School Law and the' niv.ision ot C'ul\Lrovpr:'I.i,'" dlld [)i"!>1110:1. 
crac 

The Division performs a quasi-judicial [ullcl.il>t1 IlIld,'r setil'ul I.,w "nd we m 
rules of the New Jersey State Board of Education. '.rhe Division's staff .i.nctudcs Educ 
seven full-time members whose job it is to facilitate the resolution of contro­ appr 
versies and disputes arising under education law. Although not perfect, this 

function has been carried out in the Department of Education since 1867 and has area 
been based on sound educational expertise. We see nothing in the proposed 

legislation that would give us confindence that its enactment would represent 

an improvement over the present system. S-766 appropriates $500,000 and apparently 
Thar 

assu~mes transfers of funds from the affected agencies to fund the new Office of 

Administrative Law. 
L E NJEA does not believe that adequate fiscal information has been prrw i d"d 
of Jto assure that there will be enough funding available to provide su(fic:i0nl: 

administrative la·.... judges to guarantee fair and efficient processing o( ca~(,,;. we 

lat:How many administrative law judges are provided for in S-7667 We 
elircan't determine. How many are needed7 We are not sure. Will the Office 
Tha'of Administrative Law become a training ground for young attorneys to the extent 
thLthat a continuing flow of administrative law judges will not have the necessary 

expertise to assure due process? 

If the Division of Controversies and Disputes is to be dissolved and 

its duties transferred to the Office of Administrative Law, will all duties be 

so transferred? The Division presently provides information to local school 

districts to assist in the development of sound educational procedures. Division 
tak 

staff often lend their expertise to the solution of school problems before they 
Div 

become cases. Tlle Division conducts workshops and seminars. Tlle Division 

provides in-service training for school administrators and supervisors. Tllese 
we 

activities	 often prevent formal disputes. How will these services be carried 
be 

out under the proposed law? We can find nothing in S-766 to suggest that these 
edl 

services will be continued. If these services and this expertise are lost, then in' 
we can expect a sharp increase in controversies and disputes - hardly a worthy edl 
outcome of	 the proposed law. 
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5-766 seems to suggest that the mere acquisition of a law degree and 

admittance to the bar will assure adequate due process. Our experience suggests 

that this is not the case. An intimate knowledge of the complex New Jersey 

School Law and related Administrative Code is far more important than a law 

degree in adjudicating controversies and disputes arising in public education. 

Mr. Chairman, NJEA is concerned that S-766 is silent on any appeals 

procedure beyond the administrative adjudication. Under present procedures, the 

Commissioner's decision may be appealed to the State Board of Education and 

beyond to the Courts. The silence of the proposed law in this area gives us no 

comfort. 

S-766 provides that it shall supersede and repeal any acts or parts 

of acts inconsistent with the proposed law. Will 5-766 then abolish or alter 

the present filing procedures under the Tenure Hearing l\ct? will the 45-day 

statute of limitations under the Tenure Hearing Act in any way be affected? 

Will the statute that provides for pay during suspension under specific time lines 

be affected? 

Mr. Chairman, there are just too many unanswered questions about this 

bill. The NJEA believes that 5-766 as proposed will create a cumbersome bureau­

cracy that will in fact diminish rather than enhance due process. Therefore, 

we must oppose this legislation as long as it includes the Department of 

Education. There may be some areas and agencies for which this legislation is 

appropriate. 

NJEA respectfully submits to you that education is not one of those 

areas. Thank you very much. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Thank you. 

Are there any questions by members of the Committee? (No questions.) 

Thank you. 

Lewis Applegate, State Chamber of Commerce. 

LEW I S R. A P P LEG ATE: Senator and members of the Committee, instead 

of reading my two and one-half or three-page statement, I will merely reiterate what 

we have been saying for about four or five years now, that we support this legis­

lation, also that there have been a couple of changes which we advocated, one, 

eliminating some of the exclusions which we objected to in previous legislation. 

That has been taken care of. We, therefore, want to go on record in support of 

this bill. And I do have a prepared statement which I would like to file for the 

record. 

(Written statement submitted by Mr. Applegate can be found 
beginning on page 6X.) 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Senator Herbert. 

SENATOR HERBERT: Mr. Appleggte, would you respond to the adamant position 

taken by the last three speakers about the Commissioner of Education and the 

Division of Education. You support the bill with the Education Division in it. 

MR. APPLEGATE: We have wanted as much coverage as we could get because 

we feel that a coordinated administrative branch for administering hearings would 

be preferable to allowing each department to do their own. Even in the area of 

education, we see no reason why those so-called experts could not be moved over 

into the Administrative Hearing Department and perform their functions in the 

educational area within the structure advocated by this bill. In other words, if 
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it is good enough for the rest of the departments, the majority of them, we think 

it is also appropriate for the Education Department. We say that with the knowledge 

of about 23 years with the educational branch. 

SENATOR HERBERT: The point that was made today though - it is kind 

of cogent and it affected my thinking on the bill - was that most of the disputes 

in the Division on Education come from outside the Division, while most of the 

disputes elsewhere in the vast bureaucracy come within the Division. Now would 'you 

respond to that? 

MR. APPLEGATE: I think there is some element of truth there. in that 

that does make it slightly different from the rest of the operation. But I still 

believe - and we still believe - that you could mesh into this overall operation 

the Education Department needs and have them operate in the area of 0ducat.ion 

hearings. It is no different from Banking or Insurance. It is a hearinq prOC0SH. 

You can use the same experts they are using now and just put them in a new 

department. 

SENATOR HERBERT: Do you support the bill despite the present exclusions 

or would you prefer that the present exclusions - that is, the State Board of Parole. 

PERC, the Division of workers' Compensation and Tax Appeals Division 

MR. APPLEGATE: 'I'hese exclusions are in there because of statutory 

reasons. 

SENATOR HERBERT: I see. 

MR. APPLEGATE: And we wou~d just as soon not bother them, particularly 

Workers' Compensation. 

SENATOR HERBERT: I just wanted to get your view clear on that. 

Thank you very much. I have no further questions. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Applegate is the last listed witness. Are there any questions 

from my colleagues, Senator Laskin and Senator Herbert? Hearing none, I would 
cask for a motion to adjourn this public hearing. .. 

SENATOR HERBERT: I so move. 
J.SENATOR LASKIN: I second the motion. 

SENATOR ERRICHETTI: Moved and seconded. The meeting is closed. 
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STATEMENT 

by 

James L. Wilson , President 

The New Jersey Association of School Attorneys 

to 

The Committee on State Government
 

The General As~;embly of New Jersey
 

on 

S 766 

An Act to establish an independent Office of Administrative 

Law in the Executive Branch of state Government, to transfer" 

to it the functions of, and to reallocate the existing 

Division of Administrative Procedure, to amend and supplement 

P.L. 1968, c 410, to repeal section thereof, and to appropriate 

certain sums. 

Ix 
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I asked for this opportunity to speak on t})is Bill because 
In 

the organization I represent feels that the Bill contains 
of 

a grave risk of serious harm to our educational system. 
wi 

Title 18A constitutes a plan compiled by our Legislatures 
tc 

over the years to carry out the educational mandate of our 
~ 

Constitut'on. Basically it is a good plan- susoeptible, 
1S 

I am sure, to improvement, but still good enough that in 
tc 

seeking improvement, we should not risk the present level 
bI 

of performance. 
t~ 

e, 
These are particularly critical ti~es. The Legislature 

mE 
recently enacted Chapter 212 of the Laws of 1975, which, 

with the regulations that followed, 80ntain' ~ new 
Tl 

directives, rights and procedures. Many of these are yet 
b' 

to be tested. Legal problems will arise as Boards of 
w~ 

Education and the staffa they employ attempt to carry out 

theae directivee. To avoid catastrophe there must be & 

forum for rapid and reliable re80~ution of theae questions. 

This fo.rum must be educationally oriented, but have as 

well an understanding of the legal standards to 

The Division of ControTersie~ and Disputes is 50 

S 766 does not describe an effective substitute. 

2X
 

be applied. 

organized. 
tJ 

c 

c 

N 

i 

t 

a 
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In the 1953-54 school year, in which I began the practioe 

of law, the Commissioner published his 12 decisions, together 

with the? appellate decisions, and all of the amendments 

to Title 18, all in an 83 page booklet. The most recent 

~.~i±."jx bound edition of School Law Decisions, cOTering 

1975, runs 1167 p~ges, in two volumes. I didn't attempt 

to count the cases. I would ask that you each examine ' 

briefly the nature of the cases that are reported in those 

two volumes. You will find many that required oareful 

evaluation of educational valuee, not merely by the decision 

maker, but by the hearer. 

This revolution we call educational reform is nation-wide, 

but New Jersey has become one of the leading jurisdictions. 

We haTe come to grips with the major problems, haTe settled 

some of the fundamental issues, and we are pUblishing the 

results as they emerge. We were not the first in the arena. 

Robins~v-fahill was preceded by similar oases in several 

other states, notably Serrano-y-Priest in California. in 

spite of the apparently interminable trauma we have suttered 

through, it i8 worthy of note that Robinson v Cahill was 

completed, including all six hearings before our Supreme 

Court, beiore the final decision in Serrano v Priest. 

New Jersey's reputation and impaot in school law is due 

in no small part to the fact that we are one of the Statee 

that have given decision-making powers to the Commissioner, 

and that his decisions are published. 

3X 
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These decisions are of such importance that our Organization 

finances an index, which is published and distributed in 
ir 

cooperation with the New Jersey School Boards Association. 

There is another index compiled by NJEA. The Commissioner's 
Pf 

more important decisions are reviewed nationally in the 
I 

School Law Reporter, published by the National Organizational 

on Legal Problems of Education (NOLPE). 
1 

f, 
In anticipation of the impact of Chapter 212, the Trustees 

tJ 
of our organization last year commissioned a study, to be 

ooncerned with the legal implications of T & E, and their 
c 

probable impact in the problems to be faced by school attorneys. 
f 

This study provides food tor thought to anyone concerned 

with the forum in which our educational disputes are to 
2 

be tested. 
e 

s 
We do not know what the future holds in this field any 

a 
more than any other. We can be sure, however, that the 

c 
decisions made in the coming years in the field of education 

will have a great im~act, not only upon the litigants, but 

upon our whole society. The wisdom of these deci.ions, 

therefor, is of crucial importance. I assure you that 

the quality of the decisions by the Commissioner can be 

of no higher an order than the insight and ability of the 

hearer of the facts. ThiS, in my judgment, is the weakne8s 

of S 766 in its present ~orm, as directed to the Department 

of Education. If the hearing examiners are taken out of 

the Department of Education, and particularly if the method 
4X 

of selection and training is lost, their expertise will 
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inevitably diminish. We can't arford it. 

s 
Permit me in closing to summarize in three reasons, why 

I believe the present plan benefits our educational
l.al 

system more than the new proposal is likely to do: 

1. Efficiency. The hearing examiners are to a man, 

familiar, through training and experience, with educational 

theory and practice, and with the precedents of School Law 

Decisions. They are not infrequently more familiar than 

counsel with applicable law, Consequently, matters are
.'neys. 

frequently adjusted at preliminary hearings, and in any 

event, can procedeexpeditiously. 

2. Economy. I do not know what is paid the present hearing 

examiners, or proposed for administriltive jUdges, but there 

should be better salaries with the new level of jUdges, 

and in practice, I can't imagine the per-jUdge load of 

cases disposed of will match present performance. 

3. Democracy. The law provides that the Commissionee 

shall hear and decide, without cost to the parties, cases 

arising under the school laws. Petitioners to the Commissioner 

are frequently without counsel, or any clear under*tanding 

of applicable law. These persons get a careful hearing 

Qt the present time. I doubt it administrative judges 

will be eqUipped to do the same. 

4X
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STATE~1ENT OF 

hearLEWIS R. APPLEGATE, VICE PRESIDENT 
NEW JERSEY STATE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE impa: 

before the 

havi 
SENATE STATE GOVERNMENT, fEDERAL AND INTER­

part-STATE RELATIONS AND VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

law, 
Relative to Senate Bill Number 766 

case: 

Senate Chamber, State House part: 
Trenton, New Jersey 

of a oMarch 20, 1978 

cliel 
--- ***** 

inteJ 

The State Chamber ~f Commerce, having played a leading role ten 

years ago in the development, adoption, and implementation of the 
hear: 

Administrative Procedure Act, is intensely interested in any proposals 
defe< 

to make major changes in that law, or, for that matter, in the general 
judie 

administrative process in State Government. 
setb 

a ma~ 

Therefore, we have followed with the greatest interest the proposal 

during the 1976-77 Legislature of Senate Bill 1550 and that bill's 

development into Senate Bill 1811 and subsequent admendments to the bill. 
to c( 

We now appreciate the opportunity to offer our comments on the 1978-79 
its t 

version of the bill, Senate Bill 766 sponsor~d by Senators Yates and 
agenc 

Weiss. 
other 

TherE 
He regard these proposals to create a corps of full-time, 

of Ac 
professionally trained and impartial hearing officers to conduct hearings 

admir. 
and make determinations in contested cases arising under the rules anu 

publi
regulations issued by State departments and agencies as a most salutary 

admir 
development. 

must 

what 
We have long been concerned that the present system represents the 

antithesis of due process in that investigative, prosecutorial and 

adjudicatory functions are handled entirely within the agency involved, 

and often by the same individual. Moreover, the present appointment of 

6X 
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hearing officers by the agency head inevitably b)"ings into question their 

impartiality. Additionally, today's hearing officers are often part-tim~, 

either being pUblic employees with other duties \"ithin 

having non-public employment or profession.'!1 pn\ctict~. 

the ,lqenc)' or 1-'<'r~;'\Il:; 

The usc' of Sllc:lI 
\ 

part-time hearing officers, who arc orU~n not proficient in adminil;trdtivc ~ law, has often led to delays in the handling of cases, inexpertly handled 

cases, and poorly prepared records that cause a variety of problems, 

particularly when appeals are taken to the courts. Furthermore, the use 

of attorneys as part-time hearing officers who may also represent private 

I

I 
/


I
 
clients before State agencies raises an important question of conflict of i 

I 

interest. 

We feel that the use of professional, full-time, and independent 

hearing officers will remove or sUbstantially reduce these several serious 

defects in the present system for deuling administratively or in a qU2si­

jUdicial fashion with contested matters. In fact, the provision in S-7GG 

setting time parameters for the disposition of contested cases is itself 

a major improvement. 

We also find benefits encompassed in S-766 othf:r than those relating 

to contested cases, namely that the new Office of Administrative Law, with 

its trained cadre of personnel, would be in a position to assist State 

agencies in their rule-making process, in investigative hearings, and in 

other areas of administrative practice that have long needed improvement. 

Therefore, we urge that the bill not only direct and empower the new office 

of Administrative Law to playa positive role in the improvement of 

administrative practice in all State agencies but also clearly state as 

pUblic policy that those agencies shall conform to established uniform 

administrative procedures. In other words, we feel strongly that a person 

must enjoy equal administrative process rights and protections no matter 

what agency he is involved with. 

7X
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We are pleased to note the amendments made to Sen.:lte Bill 766 c0nt.3in 

amendments that were suggested by the State Chamber in Ctll- previous tL'stim('ny. 

One of our original objections was the sizeable list of .:lgencies that w('rr 

exempted from the use of the new hearing officers, as contained in the original 

version of this legislation in 1976-77 session, Senate Bill 1811. We feel 

that this list of exempted agencies should be pared to a minimum of agencies 

whose statutory function cannot accomodate the :Iearing procedures contemplated 

in this legislation. A second objection was the inclustion of compensation 

schedules for employees of the proposed agency. We have always regarded 

statutory salary setting as a poor practice for a variety of reasons and 

in previous testimony before this committee, the State Chamber recommended 

that provision be omitted. 

We thank the sponsors, Senators Yates and Weiss, for adopting amendments 

to the original legislation to meet the concerns of the State Chamber of 

Conunerce. 

In summation, we endorse Senate Bill 766 as being a most desirable 

improvement in the administrative process in New Jersey State agencies, one 

that will redound to the benefit of all our citizens. 

*******� 
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